THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY MET IN REGULAR SESSION ON THIS DATE WITH THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS PRESENT:

Present: James Ward, Deborah Martin, Donald Wuertz

8:00 AM Duncan Whitney, Delaware County Prosecutor

RESOLUTION NO. 00-391

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING RESOLUTIONS AND MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING HELD MAY 8, 2000:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mr. Ward to dispense with the reading of the minutes and resolutions of the regular meeting held May 8, 2000, and to approve resolutions and minutes as submitted.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Ward	Aye	Mrs. Martin	Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Ay	/e

PUBLIC COMMENT

Mrs. Martin reported the County's bond rating has been raised to a Aa2 as a result of the recent trip to New York make by herself, Mr. Cannon, and Mr. Yost.

RESOLUTION NO. 00-392

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING FOR PAYMENT WARRANTS NUMBERED 271971 THROUGH 272620:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve for payment warrants 271971 through 272620 on file in the office of the Delaware County Commissioners.

Vote on Motion	Mrs. Martin	Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-393

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING A RESOLUTION HONORING HAZEL MOORE UPON HER INDUCTION INTO THE CENTRAL OHIO SENIOR CITIZENS HALL OF FAME:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mr. Ward to adopt the following resolution:

WHEREAS, Hazel Moore is being honored for her legacy of caring and her sense of community. Caregiving was truly her calling in life.

WHEREAS; Hazel Moore was a Delaware County resident for most of her 94 years, and spent many of those years as a caregiver for her mother, her husband, her friends, and providing one-on-one assistance to individuals in need.

WHEREAS; Hazel Moore was an active and dedicated volunteer at the Park Avenue Senior Citizen Center and was a devoted member of her church where she worked many hours in the food pantry distributing food to the needy.

WHEREAS; Hazel Moore was always the first to volunteer to help when help was needed. Her willingness to volunteer extended well beyond her church and community. Hazel was always willing to go the extra mile when "doing" for others.

WHEREAS; Delaware County is richer for the contributions made to the community by Hazel Moore.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Commissioners of Delaware County wishes to express it sincere appreciation for the contributions made by Hazel Moore and honor her on her induction into the Ohio Senior Citizens Hall of Fame.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED; that the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners shall cause this Resolution to be spread upon the Board's Official Journal

Vote on Motion Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye	Mrs. Martin	Aye
---------------------------	-----	----------	-----	-------------	-----

RESOLUTION NO. 00-394

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING TRAVEL EXPENSE REQUESTS:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following:

EMS is requesting that Bill Barks attend the Advanced Medical Life Support Course at Toledo on May 25 through May 26, 2000, in the amount of \$125.10.

EMS is requesting that Bill Barks attend the Instructor Course for AHA/NSC Heartsaver Facts Course at Delaware on May 19, 2000, in the amount of \$85.00.

EMS is requesting that Alan Hager and Chuck Roderick attend the ACLS Instructor Class at Columbus on May 16, 2000, in the amount of \$150.00.

Human Services is requesting that Crystal Ufferman, Diana Bratton and Kathy Mason attend the FACSIS User Group Meeting at Columbus on April 26, 2000, in the amount of \$22.00.

Data is requesting that Ron Clayton attend the Microsoft Advanced Access Class at Columbus on May 24, 2000, in the amount of \$211.00.

Buildings is requesting that (5) Board of Zoning Appeals, (5) Rural Zoning Commission plus Dave LaValle and Fred Fowler attend the Zoning Seminar at Delaware Hotel on May 31, 2000, in the amount of 165.60.

Dog and Kennel is requesting that Terry Conant attend the CCAO & OCDWA Summer Conference at Toledo on June 5 through June 6, 2000, in the amount of \$317.98.

Administrative Services is requesting that Myra Williamson attend the SERB Ohio Public Sector Developing Labor Law Seminar at Delaware on June 23, 2000, in the amount of \$67.40.

County Engineer is requesting that William Stillions, Lauri Schultz and Keith Smigle attend the Office Training Course at Columbus on May 24 and June 6, 2000, in the amount of \$237.20.

County Engineer is requesting that Cindy Davis attend the Conference for Women at Columbus on May 25, 2000, in the amount of \$56.00.

County Engineer is requesting that Ryan Mraz attend the Appraisal Procedures at Columbus on June 25 through July 2, 2000, in the amount of \$150.00.

County Engineer is requesting that Tiffany Brinkmoeller attend the CCAO/CEAO Summer Conference at Toledo on June 4 through June 6,2000, in the amount of \$474.00.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Ward	Aye	Mrs. Martin	Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-395

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE TREASURER'S REPORT:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mr. Ward to approve the Treasurer's Report.

Vote on Motion Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-396

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING TRANSFER OF FUNDS, APPROPRIATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following:

NEW FUND

132-25-1320	ISP-Electronic Monitoring Fund Special Revenue Fund		
106-26-1060	Juvenile Court - Special Projects Special Revenue Fund		
SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS			
FUND NUMBER:	FUND NAME:	AMO	OUNT:
001-3315-020	Prisoner Transport - Srvs & Chrgs	\$	11,912.00
003-4516-010	Public Assistance/WIA-Salaries	\$	55,578.40

003-4516-011 003-4516-012			ssistance/WIA-Bersistance/WIA-PE		\$ \$	11,801.30 7,530.87
003-4516-013		Public A	ssistance/WIA-Me	dicare	\$	805.89
003-4516-015		Public A	ssistance/WIA-Ma	ıt & Sup	\$	2,000.00
003-4516-020		Public A	ssistance/WIA-Srv	vs & Chrgs	\$	64,901.54
127-1270-010		Comm B	ased Corrections -	- Salaries	\$	28,641.86
127-1270-011		Comm B	ased Corrections -	- Benefits	\$	3,674.40
127-1270-012		Comm B	ased Corrections -	- PERS	\$	3,827.90
127-1270-013		Comm B	ased Corrections -	- Medicare	\$	409.58
127-1270-015		Comm B	ased Corrections -	Mat & Sup	\$	7,273.36
127-1270-020		Comm B	ased Corrections -	Srvs & Chrgs	\$	13,510.77
132-1320-020		ISP-Elec	Monitoring Fund	- Srvs & Chrgs	\$	1,000.00
132-1320-040		ISP-Elec	Monitoring Fund	– Equip	\$	1,000.00
TRANSFER OF APP	ROPRIATION					
FROM:		TO:			AM	IOUNT:
127-1270-011 Intensive Supervision G	Frant - Benefits	127-127 Intensive	0-012 Supervision Gran	t – PERS	\$	345.00
127-1275-020 CDA/Elec Monitoring -	Srvs & Chrgs	127-127 CDA/Ele	5-040 ec Monitoring – Ec	luip	\$	1,500.00
TRANSFER OF FUN	DS					
FROM:		TO:			AM	IOUNT:
079-7910-047 Tartan Fields - Transfer	Out	055-551 Bond Re	0-087 tirement - Transfer	:-In	\$	65,159.43
038-3530-047 Region 1A - Transfer O	ut	035-351 Sanitary	0-087 Sewer/Admin - Tr	ansfer-In	\$	300,000.00
Vote on Motion	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye Mrs.	Martin	Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-397

IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTING AND AWARDING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SELECTION COMMITTEE TO HIRE BOVIS LEND LEASE AS THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER FOR THE NEW COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mr. Ward to approve the following resolution:

Whereas, Delaware County Request for Proposal were taken by the Construction Management Selection Committee, and

Whereas, after carefully reviewing the qualifications and proposals, the Construction Management Selection Committee recommends Bovis Lend Lease, as having the best qualifications and subject to negotiations of acceptable contract and fee structure;

Now Therefore Be It Resolved, by the Board of Commissioners, Delaware County, State of Ohio, approve and accept Bovis Lend Lease as the Construction Manager for the New Administration Building.

Vote on Motion N	Mr. Ward A	Aye N	Ars. Martin	Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Aye
------------------	------------	-------	-------------	-----	------------	-----

RESOLUTION NO. 00-398

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF APPROPRIATING MONEY TO THE DELAWARE HISTORICAL SOCIETY:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mr. Ward to adopt the following:

- WHEREAS, The Delaware Historical Society has made an application to the Board of County Commissioners for funds pursuant to Ohio Revised Code section 307.23; and
- WHEREAS, The Delaware Historical Society is incorporated as a non-profit organization under the laws of the State of Ohio; and
- WHEREAS, the funds are to be used for the promotion of historical work within the boarders of the county, And for the collection, preservation, and publication of historical material, and to disseminate historical information of the county, and in general to defray the expense of carrying on historical work in the county; and
- WHEREAS, there are funds in the revenue fund not already appropriated; and
- WHEREAS, the last decennial census indicate that Delaware County had a population of more than twenty-five thousand and not more than one hundred thousand.
- NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County, State of Ohio, that a sum of ten thousand dollars (\$10,000.00) be appropriated form the revenue fund to the Delaware Historical Society to aid in defraying the expenses of carrying on historical work in Delaware County, Ohio for the 1999 tax year.
- Vote on Motion Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-399

IN THE MATTER OF PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF BONDS IN THE MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF \$15,000,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COST OF CONSTRUCTING A BUILDING TO PROVIDE FACILITIES FOR COUNTY OFFICES AND FUNCTIONS AND IMPROVING THE SITE THEREOF:

The Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County, Ohio, met in regular session in its offices at 101 North Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio at 9:00 am. on May 15, 2000, with the following members present:

Jim Ward, Debbie Martin, Donald Wuertz

It was moved by Mr. Ward to adopt the following Resolution and Mr. Wuertz seconded the motion.

WHEREAS, the County Auditor as fiscal officer of this County has certified to this Board that the estimated life or period of usefulness of the improvements described in Section 2 is at least five years and the maximum maturity of the Bonds described in Section 2 is 25 years.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County, State of Ohio, that:

Section 1. <u>Definitions and Interpretation</u>. In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in this Resolution, unless the context or use clearly indicates another or different meaning or intent:

"Authorized Denominations" means (a) with respect to Current Interest Bonds, the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and (b) with respect to Capital Appreciation Bonds, the denomination equal to the original principal amount that, when interest is accrued and compounded thereon on each Interest Accretion Date to the stated maturity of the Bonds, will equal a \$5,000 Maturity Amount or any integral multiple thereof.

"Bond proceedings" means, collectively, this Resolution, the Certificate of Award, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and such other proceedings of the County, including the Bonds, that provide collectively for, among other things, the rights of holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds.

"Bond Register" means all books and records necessary for the registration, exchange and transfer of Bonds as provided in Section 5.

"Bond Registrar" means The Delaware County Bank and Trust Company, in Delaware, Ohio as the initial authenticating agent, bond registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the Bonds under the Registrar Agreement and until a successor Bond Registrar shall have become such pursuant to the provisions of the Registrar Agreement and, thereafter, "Bond Registrar" shall mean the successor Bond Registrar.

"Book entry form" or "book entry system" means a form or system under which (a) the ownership of book entry

interests in Bonds and the principal of and interest on the Bonds may be transferred only through a book entry, and (b) physical Bond certificates in fully registered form are issued by the County only to a Depository or its nominee as registered owner, with the Bonds "immobilized" in the custody of the Depository or its designated agent. The book entry maintained by others than the County is the record that identifies the owners of book entry interests in those Bonds and that principal and interest.

"Capital Appreciation Bonds" means any Bonds designated as such in the Certificate of Award, maturing in the years, being in the original principal amounts and having the Maturity Amounts set forth therein, and bearing interest accrued and compounded on each Interest Accretion Date and payable at maturity.

"Certificate of Award" means the certificate authorized by Section 6(a), to be executed by the County Administrator, setting forth and determining those terms or other matters pertaining to the Bonds and their issuance, sale and delivery as this Resolution requires or authorizes to be set forth or determined therein.

"Clerk" means the Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners.

"Closing Date" means the date of physical delivery of, and payment of the purchase price for, the Bonds.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, the Regulations (whether temporary or final) under that Code or the statutory predecessor of that Code, and any amendments of, or successor provisions to, the foregoing and any official rulings, announcements, notices, procedures and judicial determinations regarding any of the foregoing, all as and to the extent applicable. Unless otherwise indicated, reference to a Section of the Code includes any applicable successor section or provision and such applicable Regulations, rulings, announcements, notices, procedures and determinations pertinent to that Section.

"Compound Accreted Amount" means, with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bond, the original principal amount thereof plus interest accrued and compounded on each Interest Accretion Date to the date of maturity or other date of determination. The Compound Accreted Amount per \$5,000 Maturity Amount of the Capital Appreciation Bonds of each maturity as of each Interest Accretion Date shall be set forth in the Certificate of Award. The Compound Accreted Amount of any Capital Appreciation Bond for each maturity as of any date other than an Interest Accretion Date is the sum of (a) the Compound Accreted Amount for such Bond on the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Date plus (b) the product of (i) the difference between (A) the Compound Accreted Amount of that Bond on the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Date, times (ii) the ratio of (C) the number of days from the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Date to the date of determination to (D) the total number of days from that immediately preceding Interest Accretion Date to the immediately succeeding Interest Accretion Bond as of a date prior to the first Interest Accretion Date, the Closing Date shall be deemed to be the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Bond as of a date prior to the first Interest Accretion Date, the Closing Date shall be deemed to be the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Date and the original principal amount of that Capital Appreciation Bond shall be deemed to be the Compound Accreted Amount of that Capital Appreciation Bond shall be deemed to be the Compound Accreted Amount of that Capital Appreciation Bond shall be deemed to be the Compound Accreted Amount of a Capital Appreciation Bond as of a date prior to the first Interest Accretion Date, the Closing Date shall be deemed to be the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Date.

"Continuing Disclosure Certificate" means the certificate authorized by subsection 6(c), to be substantially in the form on file with the Clerk, and which, together with the agreements of the County set forth in that subsection, shall constitute the continuing disclosure agreement made by the County for the benefit of holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds in accordance with the Rule.

"County" means Delaware County, Ohio.

"County Administrator" means the County Administrator of the County.

"County Auditor" means the County Auditor of the County.

"Current Interest Bonds" means, collectively, the Current Interest Serial Bonds and the Current Interest Term Bonds, each as is designated as such in the Certificate of Award.

"Current Interest Serial Bonds" means those Current Interest Bonds designated as such and maturing on the dates set forth in the Certificate of Award, bearing interest payable on each Interest Payment Date and not subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption.

"Current Interest Term Bonds" means those Current Interest Bonds designated as such and maturing on the date or dates set forth in the Certificate of Award, bearing interest payable on each Interest Payment Date and subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption.

"Depository" means any securities depository that is a clearing agency under federal law operating and maintaining, with its Participants or otherwise, a book entry system to record ownership of book entry interests in Bonds or the principal of and interest on Bonds, and to effect transfers of Bonds, in book entry form, and includes and means initially The Depository Trust Company (a limited purpose trust company), New York, New York.

"Interest Accretion Dates" means, as to any Capital Appreciation Bonds, each June 1 and December 1, commencing on the date specified in the Certificate of Award, in the years any Capital Appreciation Bonds are outstanding.

"Interest Payment Dates" means (a) as to Current Interest Bonds, June 1 and December 1 of each year that the

Current Interest Bonds are outstanding, commencing on the date specified in the Certificate of Award, and (b) as to any Capital Appreciation Bonds, their respective maturity dates.

"Maturity Amount" means, with respect to a Capital Appreciation Bond, the principal and interest due and payable at the stated maturity of that Capital Appreciation Bond.

"Original Purchaser" means collectively Banc One Capital Markets, Inc. and Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

"Participant" means any participant contracting with a Depository under a book entry system and includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies, and clearing corporations.

"Principal Payment Dates" means December 1 in each of the years from and including 2001 to and including 2025, provided that the first Principal Payment Date may be deferred one year and the last Principal Payment Date may be advanced up to five years or deferred one year if such actions are determined by the County Administrator in the Certificate of Award to be in the best interest of and financially advantageous to the County and further provided that in no case shall the total number of Principal Payment Dates exceed the maximum maturity of the Bonds referred to in the preambles hereto.

"Purchase Agreement" means the Bond Purchase Agreement between the County and the Original Purchaser, as it may be modified from the form on file with the Clerk and executed by the County Administrator in accordance with Section 6.

"Registrar Agreement" means the Bond Registrar Agreement between the County and the Bond Registrar, as it may be modified from the form on file with the Clerk and executed by the County Auditor in accordance with Section 4.

"Rule" means Rule 15c2-12 prescribed by the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The captions and headings in this Resolution are solely for convenience of reference and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any Sections, subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs or clauses hereof. Reference to a Section means a section of this Resolution unless otherwise indicated.

Section 2. <u>Authorized Principal Amount and Purpose; Application of Proceeds.</u> It is necessary and determined to be in the County's best interest to issue bonds of this County in the maximum principal amount of \$15,000,000 (the Bonds) for the purpose of paying the cost of constructing a building to provide facilities for County offices and functions and improving the site thereof. The total principal amount of Bonds to be issued (not to exceed the stated maximum amount) shall be the amount certified in the Certificate of Award as the amount which is necessary to provide for paying project costs and financing costs. The Bonds shall be issued pursuant to Chapter 133, Ohio Revised Code, and this Resolution.

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, except any premium and accrued interest, shall be paid into the proper fund or funds, and those proceeds are appropriated and shall be used for the purpose for which the Bonds are being issued. Any portion of those proceeds representing premium and accrued interest shall be paid into the Bond Retirement Fund.

Section 3. <u>Denominations; Dating; Principal and Interest Payment and Redemption Provisions</u>. The Bonds shall be issued in one lot and only as fully registered bonds, in the Authorized Denominations, but in no case as to a particular maturity date exceeding the principal amount maturing on that date. The respective principal amounts of the Bonds to be issued as Current Interest Bonds and Capital Appreciation Bonds (if any Bonds are to be issued as Capital Appreciation Bonds) shall be determined in the Certificate of Award, having due regard to the best interest of and financial advantages to the County. The Current Interest Bonds shall be dated as provided in the Certificate of Award, provided that their dated date shall not be more than sixty (60) days prior to the Closing Date, and any Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be dated as of the Closing Date.

(a) <u>Interest Rates and Payment Dates</u>. The Current Interest Bonds shall bear the rate or rates of interest per year (computed on a 360-day per year basis), as shall be determined, subject to subsection (c) of this Section, in the Certificate of Award; provided, that the Current Interest Bonds of any one stated maturity all shall bear the same rate of interest. Interest on the Current Interest Bonds shall be payable at such rate or rates on the Interest Payment Dates until the principal amount has been paid or provided for. The Current Interest Bonds shall bear interest from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or provided for or, if no interest has been paid or provided for, from their date.

Any Capital Appreciation Bonds shall bear interest from the Closing Date at the compounding rate or rates of interest (computed on a 360-day per year basis), accrued and compounded on each Interest Accretion Date and payable at maturity, that will result in the aggregate Maturity Amounts payable at maturity, as shall be determined, subject to subsection (c) of this Section, in the Certificate of Award; provided, that the Capital Appreciation Bonds of any one stated maturity all shall bear the same compounding rate of interest. The total interest accrued on any Capital Appreciation Bond as of any particular date shall be an amount equal to the amount by which the Compound Accreted Amount of that Capital Appreciation Bond as of that date.

(b) <u>Principal Payment Schedule</u>. The Bonds shall mature or be payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (as hereinafter defined and described) on the Principal Payment Dates in principal amounts as shall be determined, subject to subsection (c) of this Section, in the Certificate of Award, which determination shall be consistent with the best interest of and financial advantages to the County.

Consistent with the foregoing and in accordance with the determination of the best interest of and financial

advantages to the County, the County Administrator shall specify in the Certificate of Award (i) the aggregate principal amount of Current Interest Bonds to be issued as Current Interest Serial Bonds, the Principal Payment Dates on which those Bonds shall be stated to mature and the principal amount thereof that shall be stated to mature on each such Principal Payment Date, (ii) the aggregate principal amount of Current Interest Bonds to be issued as Current Interest Term Bonds, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on which those Bonds shall be stated to mature, the principal amount thereof that shall be stated to mature on each such Principal Payment Date, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on which Current Interest Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption (Mandatory Redemption Dates) and the principal amount thereof that shall be payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements on each Mandatory Redemption Date, and (iii) the aggregate principal amount of any Bonds to be issued as Capital Appreciation Bonds and the corresponding aggregate Maturity Amount thereof, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on which those Bonds shall be stated to mature, and the principal amount and corresponding Maturity Amount thereof that shall be payable on each such Principal Payment Date.

(c) <u>Conditions for Establishment of Interest Rates and Principal Payment Dates and Amounts</u>. The rate or rates of interest per year to be borne by the Current Interest Bonds and the compounding rate or rates of interest per year to be borne by any Capital Appreciation Bonds, and the principal amount of Current Interest Bonds maturing or payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements on each Principal Payment Date and the Maturity Amount of any Capital Appreciation Bonds payable on each Principal Payment Date, shall be such that the total principal and interest payments on the Bonds in any fiscal year in which principal is payable is not more than three times the amount of those payments in any other fiscal year. The net interest rate for the Bonds determined by taking into account the respective principal amounts of the Bonds and terms to maturity or mandatory sinking fund redemption of those principal amounts of Bonds shall not exceed 8½% per year.

(d) Payment of Debt Charges. The debt charges on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America without deduction for the services of the Bond Registrar as paying agent. Principal of and any premium on the Current Interest Bonds, and principal of and interest on any Capital Appreciation Bonds, shall be payable when due upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds at the office of the Bond Registrar. Interest on a Current Interest Bond shall be paid on each Interest Payment Date by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name the Bond was registered, and to that person's address appearing, on the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding that Interest Payment Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if and so long as the Bonds are issued in a book entry system, principal of and interest and any premium on the Bonds shall be payable in the manner provided in any agreement entered into by the County Auditor, in the name and on behalf of the County, in connection with the book entry system.

(e) <u>Redemption Provisions</u>. The Current Interest Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to stated maturity as follows:

(i) <u>Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Current Interest Term Bonds</u>. If any of the Bonds are issued as Current Interest Term Bonds, the Current Interest Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption in part by lot and be redeemed pursuant to mandatory sinking fund requirements, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on the applicable Mandatory Redemption Dates and in the principal amounts payable on those Dates, for which provision is made in the Certificate of Award (such Dates and amounts, the Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements).

The aggregate of the moneys to be deposited with the Bond Registrar for payment of principal of and interest on any Current Interest Term Bonds on each Mandatory Redemption Date shall include an amount sufficient to redeem on that Date the principal amount of Current Interest Term Bonds payable on that Date pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (less the amount of any credit as hereinafter provided).

The County shall have the option to deliver to the Bond Registrar for cancellation Current Interest Term Bonds in any aggregate principal amount and to receive a credit against the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation) of the County, as specified by the County Auditor, for Current Interest Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date as the Current Interest Term Bonds so delivered. That option shall be exercised by the County on or before the 15th day preceding any Mandatory Redemption Date with respect to which the County wishes to obtain a credit, by furnishing the Bond Registrar a certificate, signed by the County Auditor, setting forth the extent of the credit to be applied with respect to the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement for Current Interest Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date. If the certificate is not timely furnished to the Bond Registrar, the current Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation) shall not be reduced. A credit against the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation), as specified by the County Auditor, also shall be received by the County for any Current Interest Term Bonds which prior thereto have been redeemed (other than through the operation of the applicable Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements) or purchased for cancellation and canceled by the Bond Registrar, to the extent not applied theretofore as a credit against any Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement, for Current Interest Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date as the Current Interest Term Bonds so redeemed or purchased and canceled.

Each Current Interest Term Bond so delivered, or previously redeemed, or purchased and canceled, shall be credited by the Bond Registrar at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the then current or subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligations), as specified by the County Auditor, for Current Interest Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment

Date as the Current Interest Term Bonds so delivered, redeemed or purchased and canceled.

(ii) <u>Optional Redemption</u>. The Current Interest Bonds of the maturites specified in the Certificate of Award shall be subject to redemption by and at the sole option of the County, in whole or in part in integral multiples of \$5,000, on the dates, in the years and at the redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount to be redeemed), plus accrued interest to the redemption date, to be determined in the Certificate of Award; provided that the earliest optional redemption date shall not be earlier than December 1, 2007 or later than December 1, 2011, and the redemption price for the earliest optional redemption date shall not be greater than 103%.

If optional redemption of Current Interest Term Bonds at a redemption price exceeding 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed is to take place as of any Mandatory Redemption Date applicable to those Current Interest Term Bonds, the Current Interest Term Bonds, or portions thereof, to be redeemed optionally shall be selected by lot prior to the selection by lot of the Current Interest Term Bonds of the same maturity to be redeemed on the same date by operation of the Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements. Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to this paragraph shall be redeemed only upon written notice from the County Auditor to the Bond Registrar, given upon the direction of this Board by adoption of a resolution. That notice shall specify the redemption date and the principal amount of each maturity of Bonds to be redeemed, and shall be given at least 45 days prior to the redemption date or such shorter period as shall be acceptable to the Bond Registrar.

(iii) <u>Partial Redemption</u>. If fewer than all of the outstanding Bonds are called for optional redemption at one time and Bonds of more than one maturity are then outstanding, the Bonds that are called shall be Bonds of the maturity or maturities selected by the County. If fewer than all of the Bonds of a single maturity are to be redeemed, the selection of Bonds of that maturity to be redeemed, or portions thereof in amounts of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, shall be made by the Bond Registrar by lot in a manner determined by the Bond Registrar. In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds by lot when Bonds of denominations greater than \$5,000 are then outstanding, each \$5,000 unit of principal thereof shall be treated as if it were a separate Bond of the denomination of \$5,000. If it is determined that one or more, but not all, of the \$5,000 units of principal amount represented by a Bond are to be called for redemption, then, upon notice of redemption of a \$5,000 unit or units, the registered owner of that Bond shall surrender the Bond to the Bond Registrar (i) for payment of the redemption price of the \$5,000 unit or units of principal amount called for redemption (including, without limitation, the interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption and any premium), and (ii) for issuance, without charge to the registered owner, of a new Bond or Bonds of any Authorized Denomination or Denominations in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unmatured and unredeemed portion of, and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date as, the Bond surrendered.

(iv) <u>Notice of Redemption</u>. The notice of the call for redemption of Bonds shall identify (A) by designation, letters, numbers or other distinguishing marks, the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, (B) the redemption price to be paid, (C) the date fixed for redemption, and (D) the place or places where the amounts due upon redemption are payable. The notice shall be given by the Bond Registrar on behalf of the County by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by first class mail, postage prepaid, at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owner of each Bond subject to redemption in whole or in part at the registered owner's address shown on the Bond Register maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the fifteenth day preceding that mailing. Failure to receive notice by mail or any defect in that notice regarding any Bond, however, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any Bond.

(v) Payment of Redeemed Bonds. In the event that notice of redemption shall have been given by the Bond Registrar to the registered owners as provided above, there shall be deposited with the Bond Registrar on or prior to the redemption date, moneys that, in addition to any other moneys available therefor and held by the Bond Registrar, will be sufficient to redeem at the redemption price thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, all of the redeemable Bonds for which notice of redemption has been given. Notice having been mailed in the manner provided in the preceding paragraph hereof, the Bonds and portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date, and, subject to Section 7, upon presentation and surrender thereof at the place or places specified in that notice, shall be paid at the redemption price, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. If moneys for the redemption of all of the Bonds and portions thereof to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, are held by the Bond Registrar on the redemption date, so as to be available therefor on that date and, if notice of redemption has been deposited in the mail as aforesaid, then from and after the redemption date those Bonds and portions thereof called for redemption shall cease to bear interest and no longer shall be considered to be outstanding. If those moneys shall not be so available on the redemption date, or that notice shall not have been deposited in the mail as aforesaid, those Bonds and portions thereof shall continue to bear interest, until they are paid, at the same rate as they would have borne had they not been called for redemption. All moneys held by the Bond Registrar for the redemption of particular Bonds shall be held in trust for the account of the registered owners thereof and shall be paid to them, respectively, upon presentation and surrender of those Bonds.

(vi) <u>Capital Appreciation Bonds</u>. The Capital Appreciation Bonds, if any, are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

Section 4. <u>Execution and Authentication of Bonds; Appointment of Bond Registrar</u>. The Bonds shall be signed by at least two members of the Board of County Commissioners and the County Auditor, in the name of the County and in their

official capacities, provided that any or all of those signatures may be a facsimile. The Bonds shall be issued in the Authorized Denominations and numbers as requested by the Original Purchaser and approved by the County Auditor, shall be numbered as determined by the County Administrator in order to distinguish each Bond from any other Bond and to distinguish the Current Interest Bonds from any Capital Appreciation Bonds, and shall express upon their faces the purpose, in summary terms, for which they are issued and that they are issued pursuant to this Resolution.

The Delaware County Bank and Trust Company, in Delaware, Ohio, is hereby appointed to act as the initial Bond Registrar. The County Auditor shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the County, the Registrar Agreement between the County and the Bond Registrar, in substantially the form as is now on file with the Clerk. The Registrar Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with this Resolution and not substantially adverse to the County and that are approved by the County Auditor on behalf of the County, all of which shall be conclusively evidenced by the signing of the Registrar Agreement or amendments thereto. The County Auditor shall provide for the payment of the services rendered and for reimbursement of expenses incurred pursuant to the Registrar Agreement, except to the extent paid or reimbursed by the Original Purchaser in accordance with the Purchase Agreement, from the proceeds of the Bonds to the extent available and then from other money lawfully available and appropriated or to be appropriated for that purpose.

No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or shall be entitled to any security or benefit under the Bond proceedings unless and until the certificate of authentication printed on the Bond is signed by the Bond Registrar as authenticating agent. Authentication by the Bond Registrar shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond so authenticated has been duly issued, signed and delivered under, and is entitled to the security and benefit of, the Bond proceedings. The certificate of authentication may be signed by any authorized officer or employee of the Bond Registrar or by any other person acting as an agent of the Bond Registrar and approved by the County Auditor on behalf of the County. The same person need not sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds.

Section 5. Registration; Transfer and Exchange; Book Entry System.

(a) <u>Bond Registrar</u>. So long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, the County will cause the Bond Registrar to maintain and keep the Bond Register. Subject to the provisions of Section 3(d), the person in whose name a Bond is registered on the Bond Register shall be regarded as the absolute owner of that Bond for all purposes of the Bond proceedings. Payment of or on account of the debt charges on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of that person; neither the County nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary, but the registration may be changed as provided in this Section. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the County's liability upon the Bond, including interest, to the extent of the amount or amounts so paid.

(b) <u>Transfer and Exchange</u>. Any Bond may be exchanged for Bonds of any Authorized Denomination upon presentation and surrender at the office of the Bond Registrar, together with a request for exchange signed by the registered owner or by a person legally empowered to do so in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar. A Bond may be transferred only on the Bond Register upon presentation and surrender of the Bond at the office of the Bond Registrar together with an assignment signed by the registered owner or by a person legally empowered to do so in a form satisfactory to do so in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar together with an assignment signed by the registered owner or by a person legally empowered to do so in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar. Upon exchange or transfer the Bond Registrar shall complete, authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of any Authorized Denomination or Denominations requested by the owner equal in the aggregate to the unmatured principal amount of the Bond surrendered and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date.

If manual signatures on behalf of the County are required, the Bond Registrar shall undertake the exchange or transfer of Bonds only after the new Bonds are signed by the authorized officers of the County. In all cases of Bonds exchanged or transferred, the County shall sign and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Bond proceedings. The exchange or transfer shall be without charge to the owner, except that the County and Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to the exchange or transfer. The County or the Bond Registrar may require that those charge, if any, be paid before the procedure is begun for the exchange or transfer. All Bonds issued and authenticated upon any exchange or transfer shall be valid obligations of the County, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same security and benefit under the Bond proceedings as the Bonds surrendered upon that exchange or transfer. Neither the County nor the Bond Registrar shall be required to make any exchange or transfer of (i) Bonds then subject to call for redemption between the 15th day preceding the mailing of notice of Bonds to be redeemed and the date of that mailing, or (ii) any Bond selected for redemption, in whole or in part.

(c) <u>Book Entry System</u>. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Resolution, if the County Administrator determines in the Certificate of Award that it is in the best interest of and financially advantageous to the County, the Bonds may be issued in book entry form in accordance with the following provisions of this Section.

The Bonds may be issued to a Depository for use in a book entry system and, if and so long as a book entry system is utilized, (i) the Bonds may be issued in the form of a single, fully registered Bond representing each maturity and registered in the name of the Depository or its nominee, as registered owner, and immobilized in the custody of the Depository or its designated agent; (ii) the book entry interest owners of Bonds in book entry form shall not have any right to receive Bonds in the form of physical securities or certificates; (iii) ownership of book entry interests in Bonds in book entry form shall be shown by book entry on the system maintained and operated by the Depository and its Participants, and transfers of the ownership of book entry interests shall be made only by book entry by the Depository or to another nominee of a Depository, without further action by the County.

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as a Depository for the Bonds for use in a book entry system, the County Administrator may attempt to establish a securities depository/book entry relationship with another qualified Depository. If the County Administrator does not or is unable to do so, the County Administrator, after making provision for notification of the book entry interest owners by the then Depository and any other arrangements deemed necessary, shall permit withdrawal of the Bonds from the Depository, and shall cause Bond certificates in registered form to be authenticated by the Bond Registrar and delivered to the assigns of the Depository or its nominee, all at the cost and expense (including any costs of printing), if the event is not the result of County action or inaction, of those persons requesting such issuance.

The County Administrator is hereby authorized and directed, to the extent necessary or required, to enter into any agreements, in the name and on behalf of the County, that the County Administrator determines to be necessary in connection with a book entry system for the Bonds.

Section 6. Sale of the Bonds.

(a) <u>To the Original Purchaser</u>. The Bonds are sold at private sale to the Original Purchaser at a purchase price, not less than 97% of the aggregate principal amount thereof, as shall be determined in the Certificate of Award, plus accrued interest on the Current Interest Bonds from their date to the Closing Date, and shall be awarded by the County Administrator with and upon such other terms as are required or authorized by this Resolution to be specified in the Certificate of Award, in accordance with law, the provisions of this Resolution and the Purchase Agreement. The County Administrator is authorized, if it is determined to be in the best interest of the County, to combine the issue of Bonds with one or more other bond issues of the County into a consolidated bond issue pursuant to Section 133.30(B) of the Revised Code in which case a single Certificate of Award may be utilized for the consolidated bond issue if appropriate and consistent with the terms of this Resolution.

The County Administrator shall sign and deliver the Certificate of Award and shall cause the Bonds to be prepared and signed and delivered, together with a true transcript of proceedings with reference to the issuance of the Bonds, to the Original Purchaser upon payment of the purchase price. The Commissioners, or any of them, the County Auditor, the Clerk, the County Administrator and other County officials, as appropriate, each are authorized and directed to sign any transcript certificates, financial statements and other documents and instruments and to take such actions as are necessary or appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Resolution.

The County Administrator shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the County, the Purchase Agreement between the County and the Original Purchaser, in substantially the form as is now on file with the Clerk, providing for the sale to, and the purchase by, the Original Purchaser of the Bonds. The Purchase Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with this Resolution and not substantially adverse to the County and that are approved by the County Administrator on behalf of the County, all of which shall be conclusively evidenced by the signing of the Purchase Agreement or amendments thereto.

(b) <u>Primary Offering Disclosure -- Official Statement</u>. The preliminary official statement of the County relating to the original issuance of the Bonds substantially in the form now on file with the Clerk is approved. The distribution and use of that preliminary official statement is hereby approved. The President of the Commissioners, the County Auditor and the County Administrator are each authorized and directed to complete and sign on behalf of the County, and in their official capacities, that preliminary official statement, with such modifications, completions, changes and supplements, as those officers shall approve or authorize for the purpose of preparing and determining, and to certify or otherwise represent, that the revised official statement is a "deemed final" official statement (except for permitted omissions) by the County as of its date and is a final official statement for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(1), (3) and (4).

Those officers are each further authorized to use and distribute, or authorize the use and distribution of, the final official statement and supplements thereto in connection with the original issuance of the Bonds as may in their judgment be necessary or appropriate. Those officers and each of them are also authorized to sign and deliver, on behalf of the County, and in their official capacities, such certificates in connection with the accuracy of the final official statement and any amendment thereto as may, in their judgment, be necessary or appropriate.

(c) <u>Agreement to Provide Continuing Disclosure</u>. For the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds, the County agrees, as the only obligated person with respect to the Bonds under the Rule, to provide or cause to be provided such financial information and operating data, financial statements and notices, in such manner, as may be required for purposes of paragraph (b)(5)(i) of the Rule. In order to describe and specify certain terms of the County's continuing disclosure agreement for that purpose, and thereby to implement that agreement, including provisions for enforcement, amendment and termination, the County Administrator is authorized and directed to sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the County, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with this Resolution and not substantially adverse to the County and that are approved by the County Administrator signing on behalf of the County, all of which shall be conclusively evidenced by the signing of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate or amendments to it. The agreement formed, collectively, by this paragraph and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, shall be the County's continuing disclosure agreement for purposes of the Rule, and its performance shall be subject to the availability of funds and their annual appropriation to meet costs the County would be required to incur to perform it.

(d) <u>Application for Rating or Bond Insurance</u>. The filing of an application for (i) a rating on the Bonds by one or more nationally-recognized rating agencies, or (ii) a policy of insurance from a company or companies to better assure the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds is hereby ratified. If, in the judgment of the County Administrator, it is in the best interest of and financially advantageous to this County to obtain each such rating or policy, the County Administrator,

except to the extent paid by the Original Purchaser in accordance with the Purchase Agreement, is authorized to provide for the payment of such rating or policy from the proceeds of the Bonds to the extent available and otherwise from any other funds lawfully available and that are appropriated or shall be appropriated for that purpose.

Section 7. <u>Provisions for Tax Levy</u>. There shall be levied on all the taxable property in the County, in addition to all other taxes, a direct tax annually during the period the Bonds are outstanding in an amount sufficient to pay the debt charges on the Bonds when due, which tax shall not be less than the interest and sinking fund tax required by Section 11 of Article XII of the Ohio Constitution. The tax shall be within the ten-mill limitation imposed by law, shall be and is ordered computed, certified, levied and extended upon the tax duplicate and collected by the same officers, in the same manner and at the same time that taxes for general purposes for each of those years are certified, levied, extended and collected, and shall be placed before and in preference to all other items and for the full amount thereof. The proceeds of the tax levy shall be placed in the Bond Retirement Fund, which is irrevocably pledged for the payment of the debt charges on the Bonds when and as the same fall due.

Section 8. <u>Federal Tax Considerations</u>. The County covenants that it will use, and will restrict the use and investment of, the proceeds of the Bonds in such manner and to such extent as may be necessary so that (a) the Bonds will not (i) constitute private activity bonds, arbitrage bonds or hedge bonds under Sections 141, 148 or 149 of the Code or (ii) be treated other than as bonds to which Section 103 of the Code applies, and (b) the interest thereon will not be an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code.

The County Auditor, as the fiscal officer, or any other officer of the County having responsibility for issuance of the Bonds, is hereby authorized (a) to make or effect any election, selection, designation, choice, consent, approval, or waiver on behalf of the County with respect to the Bonds as the County is permitted or required to make or give under the federal income tax laws, including, without limitation thereto, any of the elections provided for in Section 148(f)(4)(C) of the Code or available under Section 148 of the Code, for the purpose of assuring, enhancing or protecting favorable tax treatment or status of the Bonds or interest thereon or assisting compliance with requirements for that purpose, reducing the burden or expense of such compliance, reducing the rebate amount or payments or penalties, or making payments of special amounts in lieu of making computations to determine, or paying, excess earnings as rebate, or obviating those amounts or payments, as determined by that officer, which action shall be in writing and signed by the officer, (b) to take any and all other actions, make or obtain calculations, make payments, and make or give reports, covenants and certifications of and on behalf of the County, as may be appropriate to assure the exclusion of interest from gross income and the intended tax status of the Bonds, and (c) to give one or more appropriate certificates of the County, for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds, setting forth the reasonable expectations of the County regarding the amount and use of all the proceeds of the Bonds, the facts, circumstances and estimates on which they are based, and other facts and circumstances relevant to the tax treatment of the interest on and the tax status of the Bonds.

Section 9. <u>Certification and Delivery of Resolution and Certificate of Award</u>. The Clerk is directed to deliver a certified copy of this Resolution and a copy of the Certificate of Award to the County Auditor.

Section 10. <u>Other Determinations</u>. This Board determines that all acts and conditions necessary to be performed by the County or to have been met precedent to and in the issuing of the Bonds in order to make them legal, valid and binding general obligations of the County have been performed and have been met, or will at the time of delivery of the Bonds have been performed and have been met, in regular and due form as required by law; that the full faith and credit and general property taxing power (as described in Section 7) of the County are pledged for the timely payment of the debt charges on the Bonds; and that no statutory or constitutional limitation of indebtedness or taxation will have been exceeded in the issuance of the Bonds.

Section 11. <u>Compliance with Open Meeting Requirements</u>. This Board finds and determines that all formal actions of this Board concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Board and that all deliberations of this Board and of any committees that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public in compliance with the law.

Section 12. Effective Date. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption.

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward Aye Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-400

IN THE MATTER OF PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF BONDS IN THE MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF \$2,500,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COST OF ACQUIRING A BUILDING TO PROVIDE FACILITIES FOR COUNTY OFFICES AND FUNCTIONS:

The Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County, Ohio, met in regular session in its offices at 101 North Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio at 9:00am. on May 15, 2000, with the following members present:

Jim Ward, Debbie Martin, Donald Wuertz

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz to adopt the following Resolution and Mr. Ward seconded the motion:

WHEREAS, the County Auditor as fiscal officer of this County has certified to this Board that the estimated life or period of usefulness of the improvements described in Section 2 is at least five years and the maximum maturity of the Bonds described in Section 2 is 25 years.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County, State of Ohio, that:

Section 1. <u>Definitions and Interpretation</u>. In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in this Resolution, unless the context or use clearly indicates another or different meaning or intent:

"Authorized Denominations" means (a) with respect to Current Interest Bonds, the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and (b) with respect to Capital Appreciation Bonds, the denomination equal to the original principal amount that, when interest is accrued and compounded thereon on each Interest Accretion Date to the stated maturity of the Bonds, will equal a \$5,000 Maturity Amount or any integral multiple thereof.

"Bond proceedings" means, collectively, this Resolution, the Certificate of Award, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and such other proceedings of the County, including the Bonds, that provide collectively for, among other things, the rights of holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds.

"Bond Register" means all books and records necessary for the registration, exchange and transfer of Bonds as provided in Section 5.

"Bond Registrar" means The Delaware County Bank and Trust Company, in Delaware, Ohio as the initial authenticating agent, bond registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the Bonds under the Registrar Agreement and until a successor Bond Registrar shall have become such pursuant to the provisions of the Registrar Agreement and, thereafter, "Bond Registrar" shall mean the successor Bond Registrar.

"Book entry form" or "book entry system" means a form or system under which (a) the ownership of book entry interests in Bonds and the principal of and interest on the Bonds may be transferred only through a book entry, and (b) physical Bond certificates in fully registered form are issued by the County only to a Depository or its nominee as registered owner, with the Bonds "immobilized" in the custody of the Depository or its designated agent. The book entry maintained by others than the County is the record that identifies the owners of book entry interests in those Bonds and that principal and interest.

"Capital Appreciation Bonds" means any Bonds designated as such in the Certificate of Award, maturing in the years, being in the original principal amounts and having the Maturity Amounts set forth therein, and bearing interest accrued and compounded on each Interest Accretion Date and payable at maturity.

"Certificate of Award" means the certificate authorized by Section 6(a), to be executed by the County Administrator, setting forth and determining those terms or other matters pertaining to the Bonds and their issuance, sale and delivery as this Resolution requires or authorizes to be set forth or determined therein.

"Clerk" means the Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners.

"Closing Date" means the date of physical delivery of, and payment of the purchase price for, the Bonds.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, the Regulations (whether temporary or final) under that Code or the statutory predecessor of that Code, and any amendments of, or successor provisions to, the foregoing and any official rulings, announcements, notices, procedures and judicial determinations regarding any of the foregoing, all as and to the extent applicable. Unless otherwise indicated, reference to a Section of the Code includes any applicable successor section or provision and such applicable Regulations, rulings, announcements, notices, procedures and determinations pertinent to that Section.

"Compound Accreted Amount" means, with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bond, the original principal amount thereof plus interest accrued and compounded on each Interest Accretion Date to the date of maturity or other date of determination. The Compound Accreted Amount per \$5,000 Maturity Amount of the Capital Appreciation Bonds of each maturity as of each Interest Accretion Date shall be set forth in the Certificate of Award. The Compound Accreted Amount of any Capital Appreciation Bond for each maturity as of any date other than an Interest Accretion Date is the sum of (a) the Compound Accreted Amount for such Bond on the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Date plus (b) the product of (i) the difference between (A) the Compound Accreted Amount of that Bond on the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Date, times (ii) the ratio of (C) the number of days from the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Date to the date of determination to (D) the total number of days from that immediately preceding Interest Accretion Date to the immediately succeeding Interest Accretion Bond as of a date prior to the first Interest Accretion Date, the Closing Date shall be deemed to be the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Bond as of a date prior to the first Interest Accretion Date, the Closing Date shall be deemed to be the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Date and the original principal amount of that Capital Appreciation Bond shall be deemed to be the Compound Accreted Amount of that Capital Appreciation Bond shall be deemed to be the Compound Accreted Amount of that Capital Appreciation Bond shall be deemed to be the Compound Accreted Amount of a Capital Appreciation Bond as of a date prior to the first Interest Accretion Date, the Closing Date shall be deemed to be the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Bond as of a date prior to the first Interest Accretion Date, the Closing Date shall be deemed to be the immediately preceding Interest Accretion Bond ashall be deemed to be the Compound A

"Continuing Disclosure Certificate" means the certificate authorized by subsection 6(c), to be substantially in the form on file with the Clerk, and which, together with the agreements of the County set forth in that subsection, shall constitute the continuing disclosure agreement made by the County for the benefit of holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds in accordance with the Rule.

"County" means Delaware County, Ohio.

"County Administrator" means the County Administrator of the County.

"County Auditor" means the County Auditor of the County.

"Current Interest Bonds" means, collectively, the Current Interest Serial Bonds and the Current Interest Term Bonds, each as is designated as such in the Certificate of Award.

"Current Interest Serial Bonds" means those Current Interest Bonds designated as such and maturing on the dates set forth in the Certificate of Award, bearing interest payable on each Interest Payment Date and not subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption.

"Current Interest Term Bonds" means those Current Interest Bonds designated as such and maturing on the date or dates set forth in the Certificate of Award, bearing interest payable on each Interest Payment Date and subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption.

"Depository" means any securities depository that is a clearing agency under federal law operating and maintaining, with its Participants or otherwise, a book entry system to record ownership of book entry interests in Bonds or the principal of and interest on Bonds, and to effect transfers of Bonds, in book entry form, and includes and means initially The Depository Trust Company (a limited purpose trust company), New York, New York.

"Interest Accretion Dates" means, as to any Capital Appreciation Bonds, each June 1 and December 1, commencing on the date specified in the Certificate of Award, in the years any Capital Appreciation Bonds are outstanding. *"Interest Payment Dates"* means (a) as to Current Interest Bonds, June 1 and December 1 of each year that the Current Interest Bonds are outstanding, commencing on the date specified in the Certificate of Award, and (b) as to any Capital Appreciation Bonds, their respective maturity dates.

"Maturity Amount" means, with respect to a Capital Appreciation Bond, the principal and interest due and payable at the stated maturity of that Capital Appreciation Bond.

"Original Purchaser" means collectively Banc One Capital Markets, Inc. and Fifth Third Securities, Inc.

"Participant" means any participant contracting with a Depository under a book entry system and includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies, and clearing corporations.

"Principal Payment Dates" means December 1 in each of the years from and including 2001 to and including 2025, provided that the first Principal Payment Date may be deferred one year and the last Principal Payment Date may be advanced up to five years or deferred one year if such actions are determined by the County Administrator in the Certificate of Award to be in the best interest of and financially advantageous to the County and further provided that in no case shall the total number of Principal Payment Dates exceed the maximum maturity of the Bonds referred to in the preambles hereto.

"Purchase Agreement" means the Bond Purchase Agreement between the County and the Original Purchaser, as it may be modified from the form on file with the Clerk and executed by the County Administrator in accordance with Section 6.

"Registrar Agreement" means the Bond Registrar Agreement between the County and the Bond Registrar, as it may be modified from the form on file with the Clerk and executed by the County Auditor in accordance with Section 4.

"Rule" means Rule 15c2-12 prescribed by the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The captions and headings in this Resolution are solely for convenience of reference and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any Sections, subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs or clauses hereof. Reference to a Section means a section of this Resolution unless otherwise indicated.

Section 2. <u>Authorized Principal Amount and Purpose; Application of Proceeds.</u> It is necessary and determined to be in the County's best interest to issue bonds of this County in the maximum principal amount of \$2,500,000 (the Bonds) for the purpose of paying the cost of acquiring a building to provide facilities for County offices and functions. The total principal amount of Bonds to be issued (not to exceed the stated maximum amount) shall be the amount certified in the Certificate of Award as the amount which is necessary to provide for paying project costs and financing costs. The Bonds shall be issued pursuant to Chapter 133, Ohio Revised Code, and this Resolution.

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, except any premium and accrued interest, shall be paid into the proper fund or funds, and those proceeds are appropriated and shall be used for the purpose for which the Bonds are being issued. Any portion of those proceeds representing premium and accrued interest shall be paid into the Bond Retirement Fund.

Section 3. <u>Denominations</u>; <u>Dating</u>; <u>Principal and Interest Payment and Redemption Provisions</u>. The Bonds shall be issued in one lot and only as fully registered bonds, in the Authorized Denominations, but in no case as to a particular maturity date exceeding the principal amount maturing on that date. The respective principal amounts of the Bonds to be issued as

Current Interest Bonds and Capital Appreciation Bonds (if any Bonds are to be issued as Capital Appreciation Bonds) shall be determined in the Certificate of Award, having due regard to the best interest of and financial advantages to the County. The Current Interest Bonds shall be dated as provided in the Certificate of Award, provided that their dated date shall not be more than sixty (60) days prior to the Closing Date, and any Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be dated as of the Closing Date.

(a) <u>Interest Rates and Payment Dates</u>. The Current Interest Bonds shall bear the rate or rates of interest per year (computed on a 360-day per year basis), as shall be determined, subject to subsection (c) of this Section, in the Certificate of Award; provided, that the Current Interest Bonds of any one stated maturity all shall bear the same rate of interest. Interest on the Current Interest Bonds shall be payable at such rate or rates on the Interest Payment Dates until the principal amount has been paid or provided for. The Current Interest Bonds shall bear interest from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or provided for or, if no interest has been paid or provided for, from their date.

Any Capital Appreciation Bonds shall bear interest from the Closing Date at the compounding rate or rates of interest (computed on a 360-day per year basis), accrued and compounded on each Interest Accretion Date and payable at maturity, that will result in the aggregate Maturity Amounts payable at maturity, as shall be determined, subject to subsection (c) of this Section, in the Certificate of Award; provided, that the Capital Appreciation Bonds of any one stated maturity all shall bear the same compounding rate of interest. The total interest accrued on any Capital Appreciation Bond as of any particular date shall be an amount equal to the amount by which the Compound Accreted Amount of that Capital Appreciation Bond as of that date.

(b) <u>Principal Payment Schedule</u>. The Bonds shall mature or be payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (as hereinafter defined and described) on the Principal Payment Dates in principal amounts as shall be determined, subject to subsection (c) of this Section, in the Certificate of Award, which determination shall be consistent with the best interest of and financial advantages to the County.

Consistent with the foregoing and in accordance with the determination of the best interest of and financial advantages to the County, the County Administrator shall specify in the Certificate of Award (i) the aggregate principal amount of Current Interest Bonds to be issued as Current Interest Serial Bonds, the Principal Payment Dates on which those Bonds shall be stated to mature and the principal amount of Current Interest Bonds to be issued as Current Interest Bonds, the Principal Payment Date, (ii) the aggregate principal amount of Current Interest Bonds to be issued as Current Interest Term Bonds, the Principal Payment Date, on each such Principal Payment Date, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on which those Bonds shall be stated to mature on each such Principal Payment Date, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on which Current Interest Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption (Mandatory Redemption Dates) and the principal amount thereof that shall be payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements on each Mandatory Redemption Date, and (iii) the aggregate principal amount of any Bonds to be issued as Capital Appreciation Bonds and the corresponding aggregate Maturity Amount thereof, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on which those Bonds shall be payable on each such Principal Payment Date.

(c) <u>Conditions for Establishment of Interest Rates and Principal Payment Dates and Amounts</u>. The rate or rates of interest per year to be borne by the Current Interest Bonds and the compounding rate or rates of interest per year to be borne by any Capital Appreciation Bonds, and the principal amount of Current Interest Bonds maturing or payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements on each Principal Payment Date and the Maturity Amount of any Capital Appreciation Bonds payable on each Principal Payment Date, shall be such that the total principal and interest payments on the Bonds in any fiscal year in which principal is payable is not more than three times the amount of those payments in any other fiscal year. The net interest rate for the Bonds determined by taking into account the respective principal amounts of the Bonds and terms to maturity or mandatory sinking fund redemption of those principal amounts of Bonds shall not exceed 8½% per year.

(d) Payment of Debt Charges. The debt charges on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America without deduction for the services of the Bond Registrar as paying agent. Principal of and any premium on the Current Interest Bonds, and principal of and interest on any Capital Appreciation Bonds, shall be payable when due upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds at the office of the Bond Registrar. Interest on a Current Interest Bond shall be paid on each Interest Payment Date by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name the Bond was registered, and to that person's address appearing, on the Bond Registrer at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding that Interest Payment Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if and so long as the Bonds are issued in a book entry system, principal of and interest and any premium on the Bonds shall be payable in the manner provided in any agreement entered into by the County Auditor, in the name and on behalf of the County, in connection with the book entry system.

(e) <u>Redemption Provisions</u>. The Current Interest Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to stated maturity as follows:

(i) <u>Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Current Interest Term Bonds</u>. If any of the Bonds are issued as Current Interest Term Bonds, the Current Interest Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption in part by lot and be redeemed pursuant to mandatory sinking fund requirements, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on the applicable Mandatory Redemption Dates and in the principal amounts payable on those Dates, for which provision is made in the Certificate of Award (such Dates and amounts, the Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements).

The aggregate of the moneys to be deposited with the Bond Registrar for payment of principal of and interest on any Current Interest Term Bonds on each Mandatory Redemption Date shall include an amount sufficient

to redeem on that Date the principal amount of Current Interest Term Bonds payable on that Date pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (less the amount of any credit as hereinafter provided).

The County shall have the option to deliver to the Bond Registrar for cancellation Current Interest Term Bonds in any aggregate principal amount and to receive a credit against the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation) of the County, as specified by the County Auditor, for Current Interest Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date as the Current Interest Term Bonds so delivered. That option shall be exercised by the County on or before the 15th day preceding any Mandatory Redemption Date with respect to which the County wishes to obtain a credit, by furnishing the Bond Registrar a certificate, signed by the County Auditor, setting forth the extent of the credit to be applied with respect to the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement for Current Interest Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date. If the certificate is not timely furnished to the Bond Registrar, the current Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation) shall not be reduced. A credit against the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligation), as specified by the County Auditor, also shall be received by the County for any Current Interest Term Bonds which prior thereto have been redeemed (other than through the operation of the applicable Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements) or purchased for cancellation and canceled by the Bond Registrar, to the extent not applied theretofore as a credit against any Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement, for Current Interest Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date as the Current Interest Term Bonds so redeemed or purchased and canceled.

Each Current Interest Term Bond so delivered, or previously redeemed, or purchased and canceled, shall be credited by the Bond Registrar at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the then current or subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (and corresponding mandatory redemption obligations), as specified by the County Auditor, for Current Interest Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date as the Current Interest Term Bonds so delivered, redeemed or purchased and canceled.

(ii) <u>Optional Redemption</u>. The Current Interest Bonds of the maturities specified in the Certificate of Award shall be subject to redemption by and at the sole option of the County, in whole or in part in integral multiples of \$5,000, on the dates, in the years and at the redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount to be redeemed), plus accrued interest to the redemption date, to be determined in the Certificate of Award; provided that the earliest optional redemption date shall not be earlier than December 1, 2007 or later than December 1, 2011, and the redemption price for the earliest optional redemption date shall not be greater than 103%.

If optional redemption of Current Interest Term Bonds at a redemption price exceeding 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed is to take place as of any Mandatory Redemption Date applicable to those Current Interest Term Bonds, the Current Interest Term Bonds, or portions thereof, to be redeemed optionally shall be selected by lot prior to the selection by lot of the Current Interest Term Bonds of the same maturity to be redeemed on the same date by operation of the Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements. Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to this paragraph shall be redeemed only upon written notice from the County Auditor to the Bond Registrar, given upon the direction of this Board by adoption of a resolution. That notice shall specify the redemption date and the principal amount of each maturity of Bonds to be redeemed, and shall be given at least 45 days prior to the redemption date or such shorter period as shall be acceptable to the Bond Registrar.

(iii) <u>Partial Redemption</u>. If fewer than all of the outstanding Bonds are called for optional redemption at one time and Bonds of more than one maturity are then outstanding, the Bonds that are called shall be Bonds of the maturity or maturities selected by the County. If fewer than all of the Bonds of a single maturity are to be redeemed, the selection of Bonds of that maturity to be redeemed, or portions thereof in amounts of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, shall be made by the Bond Registrar by lot in a manner determined by the Bond Registrar. In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds by lot when Bonds of denominations greater than \$5,000 are then outstanding, each \$5,000 unit of principal thereof shall be treated as if it were a separate Bond of the denomination of \$5,000. If it is determined that one or more, but not all, of the \$5,000 units of principal amount represented by a Bond are to be called for redemption, then, upon notice of redemption of a \$5,000 unit or units, the registered owner of that Bond shall surrender the Bond to the Bond Registrar (i) for payment of the redemption price of the \$5,000 unit or units of principal amount called for redemption (including, without limitation, the interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption and any premium), and (ii) for issuance, without charge to the registered owner, of a new Bond or Bonds of any Authorized Denomination or Denominations in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unmatured and unredeemed portion of, and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date as, the Bond surrendered.

(iv) <u>Notice of Redemption</u>. The notice of the call for redemption of Bonds shall identify (A) by designation, letters, numbers or other distinguishing marks, the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, (B) the redemption price to be paid, (C) the date fixed for redemption, and (D) the place or places where the amounts due upon redemption are payable. The notice shall be given by the Bond Registrar on behalf of the County by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by first class mail, postage prepaid, at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owner of each Bond subject to redemption in whole or in part at the registered owner's address shown on the Bond Register maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the fifteenth day preceding that mailing. Failure to receive notice by mail or any defect in that notice regarding any Bond, however,

shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any Bond.

(v) Payment of Redeemed Bonds. In the event that notice of redemption shall have been given by the Bond Registrar to the registered owners as provided above, there shall be deposited with the Bond Registrar on or prior to the redemption date, moneys that, in addition to any other moneys available therefor and held by the Bond Registrar, will be sufficient to redeem at the redemption price thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, all of the redeemable Bonds for which notice of redemption has been given. Notice having been mailed in the manner provided in the preceding paragraph hereof, the Bonds and portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date, and, subject to Section 7, upon presentation and surrender thereof at the place or places specified in that notice, shall be paid at the redemption price, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. If moneys for the redemption of all of the Bonds and portions thereof to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, are held by the Bond Registrar on the redemption date, so as to be available therefor on that date and, if notice of redemption has been deposited in the mail as aforesaid, then from and after the redemption date those Bonds and portions thereof called for redemption shall cease to bear interest and no longer shall be considered to be outstanding. If those moneys shall not be so available on the redemption date, or that notice shall not have been deposited in the mail as aforesaid, those Bonds and portions thereof shall continue to bear interest, until they are paid, at the same rate as they would have borne had they not been called for redemption. All moneys held by the Bond Registrar for the redemption of particular Bonds shall be held in trust for the account of the registered owners thereof and shall be paid to them, respectively, upon presentation and surrender of those Bonds.

(vi) <u>Capital Appreciation Bonds</u>. The Capital Appreciation Bonds, if any, are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

Section 4. <u>Execution and Authentication of Bonds; Appointment of Bond Registrar</u>. The Bonds shall be signed by at least two members of the Board of County Commissioners and the County Auditor, in the name of the County and in their official capacities, provided that any or all of those signatures may be a facsimile. The Bonds shall be issued in the Authorized Denominations and numbers as requested by the Original Purchaser and approved by the County Auditor, shall be numbered as determined by the County Administrator in order to distinguish each Bond from any other Bond and to distinguish the Current Interest Bonds from any Capital Appreciation Bonds, and shall express upon their faces the purpose, in summary terms, for which they are issued and that they are issued pursuant to this Resolution.

The Delaware County Bank and Trust Company, in Delaware, Ohio, is hereby appointed to act as the initial Bond Registrar. The County Auditor shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the County, the Registrar Agreement between the County and the Bond Registrar, in substantially the form as is now on file with the Clerk. The Registrar Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with this Resolution and not substantially adverse to the County and that are approved by the County Auditor on behalf of the County, all of which shall be conclusively evidenced by the signing of the Registrar Agreement or amendments thereto. The County Auditor shall provide for the payment of the services rendered and for reimbursement of expenses incurred pursuant to the Registrar Agreement, except to the extent paid or reimbursed by the Original Purchaser in accordance with the Purchase Agreement, from the proceeds of the Bonds to the extent available and then from other money lawfully available and appropriated or to be appropriated for that purpose.

No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or shall be entitled to any security or benefit under the Bond proceedings unless and until the certificate of authentication printed on the Bond is signed by the Bond Registrar as authenticating agent. Authentication by the Bond Registrar shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond so authenticated has been duly issued, signed and delivered under, and is entitled to the security and benefit of, the Bond proceedings. The certificate of authentication may be signed by any authorized officer or employee of the Bond Registrar or by any other person acting as an agent of the Bond Registrar and approved by the County Auditor on behalf of the County. The same person need not sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds.

Section 5. Registration; Transfer and Exchange; Book Entry System.

(a) <u>Bond Registrar</u>. So long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, the County will cause the Bond Registrar to maintain and keep the Bond Register. Subject to the provisions of Section 3(d), the person in whose name a Bond is registered on the Bond Register shall be regarded as the absolute owner of that Bond for all purposes of the Bond proceedings. Payment of or on account of the debt charges on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of that person; neither the County nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary, but the registration may be changed as provided in this Section. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the County's liability upon the Bond, including interest, to the extent of the amount or amounts so paid.

(b) <u>Transfer and Exchange</u>. Any Bond may be exchanged for Bonds of any Authorized Denomination upon presentation and surrender at the office of the Bond Registrar, together with a request for exchange signed by the registered owner or by a person legally empowered to do so in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar. A Bond may be transferred only on the Bond Register upon presentation and surrender of the Bond at the office of the Bond Registrar together with an assignment signed by the registered owner or by a person legally empowered to do so in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar. Upon exchange or transfer the Bond Registrar shall complete, authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of any Authorized Denomination or Denominations requested by the owner equal in the aggregate to the unmatured principal amount of the Bond surrendered and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date.

If manual signatures on behalf of the County are required, the Bond Registrar shall undertake the exchange or

transfer of Bonds only after the new Bonds are signed by the authorized officers of the County. In all cases of Bonds exchanged or transferred, the County shall sign and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Bond proceedings. The exchange or transfer shall be without charge to the owner, except that the County and Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to the exchange or transfer. The County or the Bond Registrar may require that those charges, if any, be paid before the procedure is begun for the exchange or transfer. All Bonds issued and authenticated upon any exchange or transfer shall be valid obligations of the County, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same security and benefit under the Bond proceedings as the Bonds surrendered upon that exchange or transfer. Neither the County nor the Bond Registrar shall be required to make any exchange or transfer of (i) Bonds then subject to call for redemption between the 15th day preceding the mailing of notice of Bonds to be redeemed and the date of that mailing, or (ii) any Bond selected for redemption, in whole or in part.

(c) <u>Book Entry System</u>. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Resolution, if the County Administrator determines in the Certificate of Award that it is in the best interest of and financially advantageous to the County, the Bonds may be issued in book entry form in accordance with the following provisions of this Section.

The Bonds may be issued to a Depository for use in a book entry system and, if and so long as a book entry system is utilized, (i) the Bonds may be issued in the form of a single, fully registered Bond representing each maturity and registered in the name of the Depository or its nominee, as registered owner, and immobilized in the custody of the Depository or its designated agent; (ii) the book entry interest owners of Bonds in book entry form shall not have any right to receive Bonds in the form of physical securities or certificates; (iii) ownership of book entry interests in Bonds in book entry form shall be shown by book entry on the system maintained and operated by the Depository and its Participants, and transfers of the ownership of book entry interests shall be made only by book entry by the Depository or to another nominee of a Depository, without further action by the County.

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as a Depository for the Bonds for use in a book entry system, the County Administrator may attempt to establish a securities depository/book entry relationship with another qualified Depository. If the County Administrator does not or is unable to do so, the County Administrator, after making provision for notification of the book entry interest owners by the then Depository and any other arrangements deemed necessary, shall permit withdrawal of the Bonds from the Depository, and shall cause Bond certificates in registered form to be authenticated by the Bond Registrar and delivered to the assigns of the Depository or its nominee, all at the cost and expense (including any costs of printing), if the event is not the result of County action or inaction, of those persons requesting such issuance.

The County Administrator is hereby authorized and directed, to the extent necessary or required, to enter into any agreements, in the name and on behalf of the County, that the County Administrator determines to be necessary in connection with a book entry system for the Bonds.

Section 6. Sale of the Bonds.

(a) <u>To the Original Purchaser</u>. The Bonds are sold at private sale to the Original Purchaser at a purchase price, not less than 97% of the aggregate principal amount thereof, as shall be determined in the Certificate of Award, plus accrued interest on the Current Interest Bonds from their date to the Closing Date, and shall be awarded by the County Administrator with and upon such other terms as are required or authorized by this Resolution to be specified in the Certificate of Award, in accordance with law, the provisions of this Resolution and the Purchase Agreement. The County Administrator is authorized, if it is determined to be in the best interest of the County, to combine the issue of Bonds with one or more other bond issues of the County into a consolidated bond issue pursuant to Section 133.30(B) of the Revised Code in which case a single Certificate of Award may be utilized for the consolidated bond issue if appropriate and consistent with the terms of this Resolution.

The County Administrator shall sign and deliver the Certificate of Award and shall cause the Bonds to be prepared and signed and delivered, together with a true transcript of proceedings with reference to the issuance of the Bonds, to the Original Purchaser upon payment of the purchase price. The Commissioners, or any of them, the County Auditor, the Clerk, the County Administrator and other County officials, as appropriate, each are authorized and directed to sign any transcript certificates, financial statements and other documents and instruments and to take such actions as are necessary or appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Resolution.

The County Administrator shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the County, the Purchase Agreement between the County and the Original Purchaser, in substantially the form as is now on file with the Clerk, providing for the sale to, and the purchase by, the Original Purchaser of the Bonds. The Purchase Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with this Resolution and not substantially adverse to the County and that are approved by the County Administrator on behalf of the County, all of which shall be conclusively evidenced by the signing of the Purchase Agreement or amendments thereto.

(b) <u>Primary Offering Disclosure -- Official Statement</u>. The preliminary official statement of the County relating to the original issuance of the Bonds substantially in the form now on file with the Clerk is approved. The distribution and use of that preliminary official statement is hereby approved. The President of the Commissioners, the County Auditor and the County Administrator are each authorized and directed to complete and sign on behalf of the County, and in their official capacities, that preliminary official statement, with such modifications, completions, changes and supplements, as those officers shall approve or authorize for the purpose of preparing and determining, and to certify or otherwise represent, that the

revised official statement is a "deemed final" official statement (except for permitted omissions) by the County as of its date and is a final official statement for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(1), (3) and (4).

Those officers are each further authorized to use and distribute, or authorize the use and distribution of, the final official statement and supplements thereto in connection with the original issuance of the Bonds as may in their judgment be necessary or appropriate. Those officers and each of them are also authorized to sign and deliver, on behalf of the County, and in their official capacities, such certificates in connection with the accuracy of the final official statement and any amendment thereto as may, in their judgment, be necessary or appropriate.

(c) <u>Agreement to Provide Continuing Disclosure</u>. For the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds, the County agrees, as the only obligated person with respect to the Bonds under the Rule, to provide or cause to be provided such financial information and operating data, financial statements and notices, in such manner, as may be required for purposes of paragraph (b)(5)(i) of the Rule. In order to describe and specify certain terms of the County's continuing disclosure agreement for that purpose, and thereby to implement that agreement, including provisions for enforcement, amendment and termination, the County Administrator is authorized and directed to sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the County, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, with any changes or amendments that are not inconsistent with this Resolution and not substantially adverse to the County and that are approved by the County Administrator signing on behalf of the County, all of which shall be conclusively evidenced by the signing of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate or amendments to it. The agreement formed, collectively, by this paragraph and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, shall be the County's continuing disclosure agreement for purposes of the Rule, and its performance shall be subject to the availability of funds and their annual appropriation to meet costs the County would be required to incur to perform it.

(d) <u>Application for Rating or Bond Insurance</u>. The filing of an application for (i) a rating on the Bonds by one or more nationally-recognized rating agencies, or (ii) a policy of insurance from a company or companies to better assure the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds is hereby ratified. If, in the judgment of the County Administrator, it is in the best interest of and financially advantageous to this County to obtain each such rating or policy, the County Administrator, except to the extent paid by the Original Purchaser in accordance with the Purchase Agreement, is authorized to provide for the payment of such rating or policy from the proceeds of the Bonds to the extent available and otherwise from any other funds lawfully available and that are appropriated or shall be appropriated for that purpose.

Section 7. <u>Provisions for Tax Levy</u>. There shall be levied on all the taxable property in the County, in addition to all other taxes, a direct tax annually during the period the Bonds are outstanding in an amount sufficient to pay the debt charges on the Bonds when due, which tax shall not be less than the interest and sinking fund tax required by Section 11 of Article XII of the Ohio Constitution. The tax shall be within the ten-mill limitation imposed by law, shall be and is ordered computed, certified, levied and extended upon the tax duplicate and collected by the same officers, in the same manner and at the same time that taxes for general purposes for each of those years are certified, levied, extended and collected, and shall be placed before and in preference to all other items and for the full amount thereof. The proceeds of the tax levy shall be placed in the Bond Retirement Fund, which is irrevocably pledged for the payment of the debt charges on the Bonds when and as the same fall due.

Section 8. <u>Federal Tax Considerations</u>. The County covenants that it will use, and will restrict the use and investment of, the proceeds of the Bonds in such manner and to such extent as may be necessary so that (a) the Bonds will not (i) constitute private activity bonds, arbitrage bonds or hedge bonds under Sections 141, 148 or 149 of the Code or (ii) be treated other than as bonds to which Section 103 of the Code applies, and (b) the interest thereon will not be an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code.

The County Auditor, as the fiscal officer, or any other officer of the County having responsibility for issuance of the Bonds, is hereby authorized (a) to make or effect any election, selection, designation, choice, consent, approval, or waiver on behalf of the County with respect to the Bonds as the County is permitted or required to make or give under the federal income tax laws, including, without limitation thereto, any of the elections provided for in Section 148(f)(4)(C) of the Code or available under Section 148 of the Code, for the purpose of assuring, enhancing or protecting favorable tax treatment or status of the Bonds or interest thereon or assisting compliance with requirements for that purpose, reducing the burden or expense of such compliance, reducing the rebate amount or payments or penalties, or making payments of special amounts in lieu of making computations to determine, or paying, excess earnings as rebate, or obviating those amounts or payments, as determined by that officer, which action shall be in writing and signed by the officer, (b) to take any and all other actions, make or obtain calculations, make payments, and make or give reports, covenants and certifications of and on behalf of the County, as may be appropriate to assure the exclusion of interest from gross income and the intended tax status of the Bonds, and (c) to give one or more appropriate certificates of the County, for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds, setting forth the reasonable expectations of the County regarding the amount and use of all the proceeds of the Bonds, the facts, circumstances and estimates on which they are based, and other facts and circumstances relevant to the tax treatment of the interest on and the tax status of the Bonds.

Section 9. <u>Certification and Delivery of Resolution and Certificate of Award</u>. The Clerk is directed to deliver a certified copy of this Resolution and a copy of the Certificate of Award to the County Auditor.

Section 10. <u>Other Determinations</u>. This Board determines that all acts and conditions necessary to be performed by the County or to have been met precedent to and in the issuing of the Bonds in order to make them legal, valid and binding general obligations of the County have been performed and have been met, or will at the time of delivery of the Bonds have been performed and have been met, in regular and due form as required by law; that the full faith and credit and general property taxing power (as described in Section 7) of the County are pledged for the timely payment of the debt charges on the

Bonds; and that no statutory or constitutional limitation of indebtedness or taxation will have been exceeded in the issuance of the Bonds.

Section 11. <u>Compliance with Open Meeting Requirements</u>. This Board finds and determines that all formal actions of this Board concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Board and that all deliberations of this Board and of any committees that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public in compliance with the law.

Section 12. Effective Date. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption.

Vote on Motion Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye RESOLUTION NO. 00-401

IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTING MAINTENANCE BOND FOR ORCHARD LAKES, PHASE 3:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following:

The roadway construction has been completed for the referenced subdivision and, as the results of our recent field review, we have determined that minor remedial work will be required during the 2000-construction season.

In accordance with the Subdivider's Agreement, we recommend that the maintenance bond be set at **\$38,000** for the duration of the one-year maintenance period. A Maintenance Bond in that amount has been submitted. We also request approval to return the Bond being held as construction surety to the developer, Rockford Homes.

Vote on Motion Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye Mrs. Martin Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-402

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE SUBDIVIDER'S AGREEMENT FOR WALKER WOOD, SECTIONS 9 & 12 AND THE SHORES, SECTION 12:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mr. Ward to approve the subdivider's agreement:

Walker Wood, Section 9

THIS AGREEMENT executed on this 15th day of May 2000, between PLANNED COMMUNITIES, INC. as evidenced by the WALKER WOOD, SECTION 9 Construction plans filed with the Delaware County Engineer, Delaware County, Ohio and the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO is governed by the following considerations, to wit:

Said **SUBDIVIDER** is to construct, install or otherwise make all public improvements shown and set forth to be done and performed in compliance with the approved engineering drawings and specifications, all of which are a part of this **AGREEMENT**, said **SUBDIVIDER** shall, at the time of plat approval, execute bond, certified check, irrevocable letter of credit or other approved financial warranties equal to the cost of any remaining construction as shown in the Engineer's Estimate approved April 12, 2000, which is acceptable to the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS** to insure faithful performance of this **AGREEMENT** and the completion of all improvements in accordance with the **Subdivision Regulations** of Delaware County, Ohio. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall pay the entire cost and expense of all improvements.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall indemnify and save harmless the **County, Townships and/or Villages** and all of their officials, employees or agents from all claims, suits, actions and proceedings which may originate from or on account of any death, injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained as a consequence of any actions or omissions of any contractor or subcontractor or from any material, including explosives, or any method used in said work or by or on account of any accident caused by negligence or any other act or omission of any contractor or his agents or employees.

All public improvement construction shall be performed within one year from the date of the approval of said subdivision by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**. But an extension of time may be granted if approved by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall have a competent representative who is familiar with the project on site during construction. The representative shall be capable of reading plans and specifications and shall have the authority to execute the plans and specifications and -1-alterations required by the **COUNTY**. The representative shall be replaced by the **SUBDIVIDER** when, in the opinion of the **COUNTY**, his performance is deemed inadequate.

If no bonding or performance surety has been filed, then no subdivision plat will be approved until a performance bond has been approved or until all public improvements have been made. In either case, the **SUBDIVIDER** further agrees that any violations or non- compliance with any of the provisions and stipulations of this **AGREEMENT** shall constitute a breach of contract and the **COUNTY** shall have the right to stop work forthwith.

If a subdivision plat has been approved with the necessary bonding, then the **COUNTY** shall have the right to act against the performance surety for the purpose of proper completion of the public improvements within this subdivision.

ROADWAY AND STORM DRAINAGE

It is further agreed that upon execution of the AGREEMENT, the SUBDIVIDER shall deposit

SEVEN THOUSAND SIX HUNDREDDOLLARS estimated to be necessary to pay the cost of inspection by the **Delaware County Engineer** and, if deemed necessary by the **Delaware County Engineer**, testing by an independent laboratory, and the cost of street and traffic control signs. When the fund has been depleted to **thirty percent (30%)** of the original amount deposited, the **SUBDIVIDER** shall replenish the account, upon notice by the **Delaware County Engineer**. Upon completion and acceptance of the construction, the remaining amount in the fund shall be returned to the **SUBDIVIDER**, with the exception of a nominal amount for the final inspection at the end of the maintenance period.

The **County** reserves the right during construction and thereafter to permit connection of adjoining properties within the original drainage basin to the storm sewer system.

Upon completion of construction, the **SUBDIVIDER** shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair or reconstruction of any and all defective materials or workmanship for a period of one year. Said **SUBDIVIDER'S** bond or certified check or irrevocable letter of credit may be reduced to an amount estimated by the **County Engineer** for said maintenance. The reduction may be approved only after the **County Engineer** has been provided evidence that all work has been accomplished according to the approved plan and/or to the **County Engineer's** satisfaction. All work is to be done in accordance to the **Ohio Department of Transportation Specifications.**

Acceptance of the roads and drainage structures in said subdivision into the public system shall be completed only after written notice to the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS** from the **County Engineer** of his approval. The **SUBDIVIDER'S** maintenance responsibility as described above shall be completed upon formal acceptance by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**.

Any snow and ice removal or other safety requirements deemed necessary by the **County Engineer** during the period of construction or maintenance shall be the responsibility of the **SUBDIVIDER**. All of the funds set forth in the **AGREEMENT** shall be made available to the **County Engineer** to ensure proper safety compliance.

CONSTRUCTION

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, within thirty (30) days following the completion of construction and prior to final acceptance, furnish to **Delaware County**, as required, "as-built" drawings of the improvements, which plans shall become the property of the **County** and remain in the office of the **Delaware County Engineer**.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, within thirty (30) days of completion of construction, furnish to the **County** an itemized statement showing the cost of improvements and an affidavit that all material and labor costs have been paid. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall indemnify and hold harmless the **County** from expenses or claims for labor or material incident to said construction of improvements.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, during construction and maintenance periods, comply with all rules and regulations and conform to all procedures established by the **County** regarding submission of shop drawings, construction schedules, operation of facilities and other matters incident hereto.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall obtain all other necessary utility services incident to the construction of the improvements and for their continued operation. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall be responsible for all utility charges and installation costs. Utility user charges shall be paid by the **SUBDIVIDER** and maintained in continuous use throughout the construction and testing phases until accepted for operation and maintenance by the **County**.

Should the **SUBDIVIDER** become unable to carry out the provisions of this **AGREEMENT**, the **SUBDIVIDER'S** heirs, successors or assigns shall complete and comply with all applicable terms, conditions, provisions and requirements of this

AGREEMENT

In consideration whereof, the **BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO** hereby grants the **SUBDIVIDER** or his agent the right and privilege to make the improvements stipulated herein.

Walker Wood, Section 12

THIS AGREEMENT executed on this 15th day of May 2000, between PLANNED COMMUNITIES, INC. as evidenced by the WALKER WOOD, SECTION 12 Construction plans filed with the Delaware County Engineer, Delaware County, Ohio and the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO is governed by the following considerations, to wit:

Said SUBDIVIDER is to construct, install or otherwise make all public improvements shown and set forth to be done and performed in compliance with the approved engineering drawings and specifications, all of which are a part of this AGREEMENT, said SUBDIVIDER shall, at the time of plat approval, execute bond, certified check, irrevocable letter of credit or other approved financial warranties equal to the cost of any remaining construction as shown in the Engineer's Estimate approved April 12, 2000, which is acceptable to the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS to insure faithful performance of this AGREEMENT and the completion of all improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Regulations of Delaware County, Ohio. The SUBDIVIDER shall pay the entire cost and expense of all improvements.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall indemnify and save harmless the **County, Townships and/or Villages** and all of their officials, employees or agents from all claims, suits, actions and proceedings which may originate from or on account of any death, injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained as a consequence of any actions or omissions of any contractor or subcontractor or from any material, including explosives, or any method used in said work or by or on account of any accident caused by negligence or any other act or omission of any contractor or his agents or employees.

All public improvement construction shall be performed within one year from the date of the approval of said subdivision by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**. But an extension of time may be granted if approved by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall have a competent representative who is familiar with the project on site during construction. The representative shall be capable of reading plans and specifications and shall have the authority to execute the plans and specifications and alterations required by the **COUNTY**. The representative shall be replaced by the **SUBDIVIDER** when, in the opinion of the **COUNTY**, his performance is deemed inadequate.

If no bonding or performance surety has been filed, then no subdivision plat will be approved until a performance bond has been approved or until all public improvements have been made. In either case, the **SUBDIVIDER** further agrees that any violations or non- compliance with any of the provisions and stipulations of this **AGREEMENT** shall constitute a breach of contract and the **COUNTY** shall have the right to stop work forthwith.

If a subdivision plat has been approved with the necessary bonding, then the **COUNTY** shall have the right to act against the performance surety for the purpose of proper completion of the public improvements within this subdivision.

ROADWAY AND STORM DRAINAGE

It is further agreed that upon execution of the AGREEMENT, the SUBDIVIDER shall deposit TWELVE THOUSAND ONE HUNDREDDOLLARS estimated to be necessary to pay the cost of inspection by the Delaware County Engineer and, if deemed necessary by the Delaware County Engineer, testing by an independent laboratory, and the cost of street and traffic control signs. When the fund has been depleted to thirty percent (30%) of the original amount deposited, the SUBDIVIDER shall replenish the account, upon notice by the Delaware County Engineer. Upon completion and acceptance of the construction, the remaining amount in the fund shall be returned to the SUBDIVIDER, with the exception of a nominal amount for the final inspection at the end of the maintenance period.

The **County** reserves the right during construction and thereafter to permit connection of adjoining properties within the original drainage basin to the storm sewer system.

Upon completion of construction, the **SUBDIVIDER** shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair or reconstruction of any and all defective materials or workmanship for a period of one year. Said **SUBDIVIDER'S** bond or certified check or irrevocable letter of credit may be reduced to an amount estimated by the **County Engineer** for said maintenance. The reduction may be approved only after the **County Engineer** has been provided evidence that all work has been accomplished according to the approved plan and/or to the **County Engineer's** satisfaction. All work is to be done in accordance to the **Ohio Department of Transportation Specifications.**

Acceptance of the roads and drainage structures in said subdivision into the public system shall be completed only after written notice to the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS** from the **County Engineer** of his approval. The **SUBDIVIDER'S** maintenance responsibility as described above shall be completed upon formal acceptance by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**.

Any snow and ice removal or other safety requirements deemed necessary by the **County Engineer** during the period of construction or maintenance shall be the responsibility of the **SUBDIVIDER**. All of the funds set forth in the **AGREEMENT** shall be made available to the **County Engineer** to ensure proper safety compliance.

CONSTRUCTION

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, within thirty (30) days following the completion of construction and prior to final acceptance, furnish to **Delaware County**, as required, "as-built" drawings of the improvements, which plans shall become the property of the **County** and remain in the office of the **Delaware County Engineer**.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, within thirty (30) days of completion of construction, furnish to the **County** an itemized statement showing the cost of improvements and an affidavit that all material and labor costs have been paid. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall indemnify and hold harmless the **County** from expenses or claims for labor or material incident to said construction of improvements.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, during construction and maintenance periods, comply with all rules and regulations and conform to all procedures established by the **County** regarding submission of shop drawings, construction schedules, operation of facilities and other matters incident hereto.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall obtain all other necessary utility services incident to the construction of the improvements and for their continued operation. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall be responsible for all utility charges and installation costs. Utility user charges shall be paid by the **SUBDIVIDER** and maintained in continuous use throughout the construction and testing phases until accepted for operation and maintenance by the **County**.

Should the **SUBDIVIDER** become unable to carry out the provisions of this **AGREEMENT**, the **SUBDIVIDER'S** heirs, successors or assigns shall complete and comply with all applicable terms, conditions, provisions and requirements of this

AGREEMENT

In consideration whereof, the **BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO** hereby grants the **SUBDIVIDER** or his agent the right and privilege to make the improvements stipulated herein.

The Shores, Section 12

THIS AGREEMENT executed on this 15th day of May 2000, between EVERGREEN LAND COMPANY & RENNOB, INC. as evidenced by THE SHORES, SECTION 12 Construction plans filed with the Delaware County Engineer, Delaware County, Ohio and the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO is governed by the following considerations, to wit:

Said **SUBDIVIDER** is to construct, install or otherwise make all public improvements shown and set forth to be done and performed in compliance with the approved engineering drawings and specifications, all of

which are a part of this **AGREEMENT**, said **SUBDIVIDER** shall, at the time of plat approval, execute bond, certified check, irrevocable letter of credit or other approved financial warranties equal to the cost of any remaining construction as shown in the Engineer's Estimate of \$917,000 approved September 7, 1999 which is acceptable to the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS** to insure faithful performance of this **AGREEMENT** and the completion of all improvements in accordance with the **Subdivision Regulations** of Delaware County, Ohio. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall pay the entire cost and expense of all improvements.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall indemnify and save harmless the **County, Townships and/or Villages** and all of their officials, employees or agents from all claims, suits, actions and proceedings which may originate from or on account of any death, injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained as a consequence of any actions or omissions of any contractor or subcontractor or from any material, including explosives, or any method used in said work or by or on account of any accident caused by negligence or any other act or omission of any contractor or his agents or employees.

All public improvement construction shall be performed within one year from the date of the approval of said subdivision by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**. But an extension of time may be granted if approved by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall have a competent representative who is familiar with the project on site during construction. The representative shall be capable of reading plans and specifications and shall have the authority to execute the plans and specifications and alterations required by the **COUNTY**. The representative shall be replaced by the **SUBDIVIDER** when, in the opinion of the **COUNTY**, his performance is deemed inadequate.

If no bonding or performance surety has been filed, then no subdivision plat will be approved until a performance bond has been approved or until all public improvements have been made. In either case, the **SUBDIVIDER** further agrees that any violations or non- compliance with any of the provisions and stipulations of this **AGREEMENT** shall constitute a breach of contract and the **COUNTY** shall have the right to stop work forthwith.

If a subdivision plat has been approved with the necessary bonding, then the **COUNTY** shall have the right to act against the performance surety for the purpose of proper completion of the public improvements within this subdivision.

ROADWAY AND STORM DRAINAGE

It is further agreed that upon execution of the AGREEMENT, the SUBDIVIDER shall deposit SEVENTY-THREE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED SIXTY DOLLARS estimated to be necessary to pay the cost of inspection by the Delaware County Engineer and, if deemed necessary by the Delaware County Engineer, testing by an independent laboratory, and the cost of street and traffic control signs. When the fund has been depleted to thirty percent (30%) of the original amount deposited, the SUBDIVIDER shall replenish the account, upon notice by the Delaware County Engineer. Upon completion and acceptance of the construction, the remaining amount in the fund shall be returned to the SUBDIVIDER, with the exception of a nominal amount for the final inspection at the end of the maintenance period.

The **County** reserves the right during construction and thereafter to permit connection of adjoining properties within the original drainage basin to the storm sewer system.

Upon completion of construction, the **SUBDIVIDER** shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair or reconstruction of any and all defective materials or workmanship for a period of one year. Said **SUBDIVIDER'S** bond or certified check or irrevocable letter of credit may be reduced to an amount estimated by the **County Engineer** for said maintenance. The reduction may be approved only after the **County Engineer** has been provided evidence that all work has been accomplished according to the approved plan and/or to the **County Engineer's** satisfaction. All work is to be done in accordance to the **Ohio Department of Transportation Specifications.**

Acceptance of the roads and drainage structures in said subdivision into the public system shall be completed only after written notice to the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS** from the **County Engineer** of his approval. The **SUBDIVIDER'S** maintenance responsibility as described above shall be completed upon formal acceptance by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**.

Any snow and ice removal or other safety requirements deemed necessary by the **County Engineer** during the period of construction or maintenance shall be the responsibility of the **SUBDIVIDER**. All of the funds set forth in the **AGREEMENT** shall be made available to the **County Engineer** to ensure proper safety compliance.

CONSTRUCTION

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, within thirty (30) days following the completion of construction and prior to final acceptance, furnish to **Delaware County**, as required, "as-built" drawings of the improvements, which plans shall become the property of the **County** and remain in the office of the **Delaware County Engineer**.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, within thirty (30) days of completion of construction, furnish to the **County** an itemized statement showing the cost of improvements and an affidavit that all material and labor costs have been paid. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall indemnify and hold harmless the **County** from expenses or claims for labor or material incident to said construction of improvements.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, during construction and maintenance periods, comply with all rules and regulations and conform to all procedures established by the **County** regarding submission of shop drawings, construction schedules, operation of facilities and other matters incident hereto.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall obtain all other necessary utility services incident to the construction of the improvements and for their continued operation. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall be responsible for all utility charges and installation costs. Utility user charges shall be paid by the **SUBDIVIDER** and maintained in continuous use throughout the construction and testing phases until accepted for operation and maintenance by the **County**.

Should the SUBDIVIDER become unable to carry out the provisions of this AGREEMENT, the

SUBDIVIDER'S heirs, successors or assigns shall complete and comply with all applicable terms, conditions, provisions and requirements of this

AGREEMENT

In consideration whereof, the **BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO** hereby grants the **SUBDIVIDER** or his agent the right and privilege to make the improvements stipulated herein.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye	Mrs. Martin	Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-403

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE EXTENSION OF SUBDIVIDER'S AGREEMENT FOR WEDGEWOOD PLACE, SECTION 1, PHASE 2:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the extension of the subdivider's agreement:

In September of 1998, a Subdivider's Agreement was executed between Commissioners and Homewood Corporation for the construction of the referenced project. Homewood executed that Agreement to facilitate the building of a daycare center only and did not want to complete the remainder of the project at that time. They are now at a point where they wish to construct the remainder of this project and have requested an extension of their Agreement. Homewood has submitted all necessary fees and extended the expiration date of their Letter of Credit covering the construction of this project to February 2001. The County Engineer, therefore, request that you grant the extension of this Agreement to Homewood Corporation so that they may move forward with the construction.

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward Aye Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-404

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING RIGHT OF WAY WORK PERMIT SUMMARY SHEET:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mr. Ward to approve the following:

Permit #	Applicant	Loc	ation	Тур	e of Work	
U000041	Columbus Southern Power	S. C	Old 3C Highway	Bore	e PVC ducts	
U000042	Columbia Gas	Bru	st Road	Insta	all gas main	
Vote on Motion	Mrs. Martin	Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-405

IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTING AND AWARDING THE BID SUBMITTED BY CALVIN GROUP, INC. FOR 1990 KOMATSU MOTOR GRADER:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following resolution:

Whereas, Delaware County went out to bid and bids were taken on May 1, 2000, and

Whereas, after carefully reviewing the bids received, the bid submitted by Calvin Groups, Inc. of Dublin, Ohio has been determined to be the lowest and best bid who met all of the specifications for this equipment;

Now Therefore Be It Resolved, by the Board of Commissioners, Delaware County, State of Ohio, approve and accept the bid submitted by Calvin Group, Inc. in the amount of \$67,500 for the 1990 Komatsu GD625A-1 that includes allowance of \$7,500 for the trade in of the County's 1963 Cat 14D.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye	Mrs. Martin	Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-406

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE SANITARY SEWER PLAN IN HARBOR POINTE, SECTION 1:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mr. Ward to approve the sanitary sewer plan for Harbor Pointe, Section 1 for submittal to the Ohio EPA for their approval as per recommendation of the County Sanitary Engineer.

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward	Aye	Mrs. Martin	Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Aye
-------------------------	-----	-------------	-----	------------	-----

RESOLUTION NO. 00-407

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE SANITARY SUBDIVIDER'S AGREEMENTS FOR

HARBOR POINTE, SECTION 1 AND WALKER WOOD, SECTION 12, PHASES 1 & 2:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the subdivider's agreements:

Harbor Pointe, Section 1

This agreement executed on this 15th day of May, 2000, by and between M/I SCHOTTENSTEIN HOMES SUBDIVIDER, as evidenced by the HARBOR POINTE, SECTION 1 Subdivision Plat filed with the Delaware County Recorder, Delaware County, Ohio and the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS of Delaware County, Ohio is governed by the following considerations and conditions, to wit:

The SUBDIVIDER shall upon executing this AGREEMENT, pay to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER \$135,700.00minus the difference between the cost of the forcemain along Africa Road minus \$107,500.00, representing the payment of fifty percent (50%) of the capacity charges then in effect, for each single family residential connection, for 46 equivalent single family residential connections. In the event that the Africa Road forcemain cost minus \$107,500 exceeds \$135,700 credit will be applied to a future section. The remaining capacity charge shall be fifty percent (50%) of the rate currently in effect at the time connection is made and shall be paid for each single family residential connection upon application to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER for a tap permit to connect the single family residence to the sanitary sewer. Ownership of more than one (1) lot will not cause aggregation of the payments.

Said SUBDIVIDER is to construct, install or otherwise make all public improvements shown and set forth to be done and performed in compliance with the approved engineering drawings and specifications, all of which are a part of this AGREEMENT; said SUBDIVIDER is to execute Bond, certified check, irrevocable letter of credit, or other approved financial warranties equal to the cost of construction (\$616,180.00) which is acceptable to the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS to insure faithful performance of this AGREEMENT and the completion of all improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Regulations of Delaware County, Ohio. The SUBDIVIDER shall pay the entire cost and expense of said improvements.

The SUBDIVIDER shall indemnify and save harmless the County, Townships and/or Villages and all of their officials, employees and agents for mall claims, suits, actions and proceedings which may originate from or on account of any death, injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained as a consequence of any action, or omissions of any contractor or sub-contractor or from any material, method or explosive used in said work or by or on account of any accident caused by negligence or any other act or omission of any contractor or his agents or employees.

All public improvement construction shall be performed within one (1) year from the date of the approval of said SUBDIVIDER by THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS but extension of time may be granted if approved by the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS.

The SUBDIVIDER shall have a competent representative who is familiar with the project on site during construction. The representative shall be capable of reading the plans and specifications and shall have authority to execute the plans and specifications and alterations required by the COUNTY. The representative shall be replaced by the Subdivider, when in the opinion of the COUNTY, his performance is deemed inadequate.

The SUBDIVIDER further agrees that any violations of or noncompliance with any of the provisions and stipulations of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a breach of contract, and the County shall have the right to stop work forthwith and act against the performance surety for the purpose of proper completion of the public improvements within this Subdivision.

SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION

It is further agreed that upon execution of the Agreement, the SUBDIVIDER shall deposit, with the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER the sum of \$30,000.00 estimated to be necessary to pay the cost of inspection by the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER. The DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER shall in his sole discretion inspect, as necessary, the IMPROVEMENTS being installed or constructed by the SUBDIVIDER and shall keep accurate records of the time spent by his employees and agents in such inspections for which the SANITARY ENGINEER shall be reimbursed from charges against said deposit. At such time as said fund, as result of charges against the same at the rate of:

INSPECTOR \$50.00 CAMERA TRUCK \$150.00

per hour for time spent by said SANITARY ENGINEER or his staff has been depleted to a level of less than \$1,000.00, the SUBDIVIDER shall make an additional deposit of \$1,000.00 to said fund. On completion of all IMPROVEMENTS provided herein and acceptance of same by the COUNTY, any unused portions of the inspection fund shall be repaid to the SUBDIVIDER less an amount equal to \$0.50 per foot of sewer which will be deducted to cover the one year reinspection.

The SUBDIVIDER for a period of five (5) year after acceptance of the IMPROVEMENTS by the COUNTY, shall be responsible for defective materials and or workmanship. All warranties for equipment installed as part of

the IMPROVEMENTS shall be the same as new equipment warranties and shall be assigned to the COUNTY upon acceptance of the IMPROVEMENTS.

The subdivider shall provide to the COUNTY all necessary easements or right of ways required to complete the IMPROVEMENTS all of which shall be obtained at the expense of the SUBDIVIDER.

The COUNTY shall upon certification in writing from the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER that all construction is complete according to the plans and specifications by Resolution accept the IMPROVEMENTS described herein and accept and assume operations and maintenance of the same.

ALL CONSTRUCTION UNDER COUNTY JURISDICTION

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days following completion of construction, and prior to final acceptance, furnish to DELAWARE COUNTY as required, as built drawings on the IMPROVEMENTS which plans shall become the property of the COUNTY and shall remain in the office of the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER and DELAWARE COUNTY ENGINEER. The drawings shall be on reproducible Mylar and 3.5@ or 5.25@ Diskettes in either Autocade DWG files or DXF files.

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days of completion of construction, furnish to the COUNTY an itemized statement showing the cost of IMPROVEMENTS and an affidavit that all material and labor costs have been paid. The SUBDIVIDER shall indemnify and hold harmless the COUNTY from expenses or claims for labor or materials incident to said construction of the IMPROVEMENTS.

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days following completion of construction, and prior to final acceptance, furnish to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER a five (5) year maintenance Bond or other approved financial warranties, equal to ten percent (10%) of the construction cost.

The SUBDIVIDER shall during the construction and maintenance periods, comply with all rules and regulations and conform to all procedures established by the COUNTY regarding submission of shop drawings, construction schedules, operation of facilities and other matters incident hereto.

The SUBDIVIDER shall obtain all other necessary utility services incident to the construction of said IMPROVEMENTS AND FOR THEIR CONTINUED OPERATION. The SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all utility charges and installation costs. The utility user charges shall be paid by the SUBDIVIDER and maintained in continuous use throughout the construction and testing phases until accepted for operation and maintenance by the COUNTY.

Should the SUBDIVIDER become unable to carry out the provisions of this AGREEMENT, the SUBDIVIDER'S heirs, successors or assigns shall complete and comply with all applicable terms, conditions, provisions, and requirements of this AGREEMENT.

IN CONSIDERATION WHEREOF, the DELAWARE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS hereby grants the SUBDIVIDER or his agent the right and privilege to make the IMPROVEMENTS stipulated herein and as shown on the approved plans.

Walker Wood, Section 12, Phases 1 & 2

This agreement executed on this 15th day of May, 2000, by and between PLANNED COMMUNITIES SUBDIVIDER, as evidenced by the WALKER WOOD, SECTION 12, PHASES 1 & 2 Subdivision Plat filed with the Delaware County Recorder, Delaware County, Ohio and the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS of Delaware County, Ohio is governed by the following considerations and conditions, to wit:

The SUBDIVIDER shall upon executing this AGREEMENT, pay to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER \$70,800.00, representing the payment of fifty percent (50%) of the capacity charges then in effect, for each single family residential connection, for 24 equivalent single family residential connections. The remaining capacity charge shall be fifty percent (50%) of the rate currently in effect at the time connection is made and shall be paid for each single family residential connection upon application to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER for a tap permit to connect the single family residence to the sanitary sewer. Ownership of more than one (1) lot will not cause aggregation of the payments.

Said SUBDIVIDER is to construct, install or otherwise make all public improvements shown and set forth to be done and performed in compliance with the approved engineering drawings and specifications, all of which are a part of this AGREEMENT; said SUBDIVIDER is to execute Bond, certified check, irrevocable letter of credit, or other approved financial warranties equal to the cost of construction (\$33,750.00) which is acceptable to the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS to insure faithful performance of this AGREEMENT and the completion of all improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Regulations of Delaware County, Ohio. The SUBDIVIDER shall pay the entire cost and expense of said improvements.

The SUBDIVIDER shall indemnify and save harmless the County, Townships and/or Villages and all of their officials, employees and agents for mall claims, suits, actions and proceedings which may originate from or on account of any death, injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained as a consequence of any action, or omissions of any contractor or sub-contractor or from any material, method or explosive used in said

work or by or on account of any accident caused by negligence or any other act or omission of any contractor or his agents or employees.

All public improvement construction shall be performed within one (1) year from the date of the approval of said SUBDIVIDER by THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS but extension of time may be granted if approved by the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS.

The SUBDIVIDER shall have a competent representative who is familiar with the project on site during construction. The representative shall be capable of reading the plans and specifications and shall have authority to execute the plans and specifications and alterations required by the COUNTY. The representative shall be replaced by the Subdivider, when in the opinion of the COUNTY, his performance is deemed inadequate.

The SUBDIVIDER further agrees that any violations of or noncompliance with any of the provisions and stipulations of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a breach of contract, and the County shall have the right to stop work forthwith and act against the performance surety for the purpose of proper completion of the public improvements within this Subdivision.

SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION

It is further agreed that upon execution of the Agreement, the SUBDIVIDER shall deposit, with the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER the sum of \$2,365.00 estimated to be necessary to pay the cost of inspection by the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER. The DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER shall in his sole discretion inspect, as necessary, the IMPROVEMENTS being installed or constructed by the SUBDIVIDER and shall keep accurate records of the time spent by his employees and agents in such inspections for which the SANITARY ENGINEER shall be reimbursed from charges against said deposit. At such time as said fund, as result of charges against the same at the rate of:

INSPECTOR \$45.00 CAMERA TRUCK \$150.00

per hour for time spent by said SANITARY ENGINEER or his staff has been depleted to a level of less than \$1,000.00, the SUBDIVIDER shall make an additional deposit of \$1,000.00 to said fund. On completion of all IMPROVEMENTS provided herein and acceptance of same by the COUNTY, any unused portions of the inspection fund shall be repaid to the SUBDIVIDER less an amount equal to \$0.50 per foot of sewer which will be deducted to cover the one year reinspection.

The SUBDIVIDER for a period of five (5) year after acceptance of the IMPROVEMENTS by the COUNTY, shall be responsible for defective materials and or workmanship. All warranties for equipment installed as part of the IMPROVEMENTS shall be the same as new equipment warranties and shall be assigned to the COUNTY upon acceptance of the IMPROVEMENTS.

The subdivider shall provide to the COUNTY all necessary easements or right of ways required to complete the IMPROVEMENTS all of which shall be obtained at the expense of the SUBDIVIDER.

The COUNTY shall upon certification in writing from the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER that all construction is complete according to the plans and specifications by Resolution accept the IMPROVEMENTS described herein and accept and assume operations and maintenance of the same.

ALL CONSTRUCTION UNDER COUNTY JURISDICTION

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days following completion of construction, and prior to final acceptance, furnish to DELAWARE COUNTY as required, as built drawings on the IMPROVEMENTS which plans shall become the property of the COUNTY and shall remain in the office of the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER and DELAWARE COUNTY ENGINEER. The drawings shall be on reproducible Mylar and 3.5@ or 5.25@ Diskettes in either Autocade DWG files or DXF files.

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days of completion of construction, furnish to the COUNTY an itemized statement showing the cost of IMPROVEMENTS and an affidavit that all material and labor costs have been paid. The SUBDIVIDER shall indemnify and hold harmless the COUNTY from expenses or claims for labor or materials incident to said construction of the IMPROVEMENTS.

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days following completion of construction, and prior to final acceptance, furnish to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER a five (5) year maintenance Bond or other approved financial warranties, equal to ten percent (10%) of the construction cost.

The SUBDIVIDER shall during the construction and maintenance periods, comply with all rules and regulations and conform to all procedures established by the COUNTY regarding submission of shop drawings, construction schedules, operation of facilities and other matters incident hereto.

The SUBDIVIDER shall obtain all other necessary utility services incident to the construction of said IMPROVEMENTS AND FOR THEIR CONTINUED OPERATION. The SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all utility charges and installation costs. The utility user charges shall be paid by the SUBDIVIDER and maintained in

continuous use throughout the construction and testing phases until accepted for operation and maintenance by the COUNTY.

Should the SUBDIVIDER become unable to carry out the provisions of this AGREEMENT, the SUBDIVIDER'S heirs, successors or assigns shall complete and comply with all applicable terms, conditions, provisions, and requirements of this AGREEMENT.

IN CONSIDERATION WHEREOF, the DELAWARE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS hereby grants the SUBDIVIDER or his agent the right and privilege to make the IMPROVEMENTS stipulated herein and as shown on the approved plans.

Vote on Motion Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Aye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-408

IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTANCE OF THE SANITARY SEWERS IN TARTAN FIELDS, PHASES 12 & 13:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mr. Ward to accept the sanitary sewers for ownership, operation, and maintenance by Delaware County as follows:

Tartan Fields, Phases 12 & 13		3,137 feet of 8 inch sewer			10 manholes		
Vote on Motion	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye	Mrs. Martin	Aye	

RESOLUTION NO. 00-409

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CENTRAL OHIO RURAL CONSORTIUM AND THE DELAWARE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following agreement:

INTERAGENCY PROGRAM AND FISCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CENTRAL OHIO RURAL CONSORTIUM AND THE DELAWARE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

This agreement is made and entered into on the 15th day of May, 2000 by and between the Central Ohio Rural Consortium, hereinafter referred to as "CORC" and the Delaware County Department of Human Services, hereinafter

- 1. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT: With the implementation of the Workforce Investment Act and HB470 in the State of Ohio, counties were provided options to restructure or form new geographic region boundaries for the purpose of planning workforce development programs. Delaware County chose to exercise the option to leave the Central Ohio Rural Consortium to form a new regional area. In keeping with the desire to maintain the continuity of services to the residents of Delaware County, the purpose of this agreement is to outline the programmatic and fiscal relationships between the Delaware County Board of Commissioners, the Delaware County Department of Human Services, and the Central Ohio Rural Consortium for effecting a transition of employment for current CORC staff assigned to Delaware County to employment by the Delaware County Department of Human Services.
- 2. AGREEMENT PERIOD: This agreement will be effective from May 15, 2000 until June 30, 2000.
- 3. LIMITATION OF SOURCE OF FUNDS: All parties warrant that costs incurred as a result of this agreement will be charged according to the specified terms of the agreement and will not be allowable to or included as a cost of any other federally financed program in either the current or prior period.
- 4. FINANCIAL AGREEMENT: Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the Delaware County Department of Human Services agrees to employ all current employees of the Central Ohio Rural Consortium stationed in the Delaware County CORC office as of May 15, 2000. (A list of current employees is attached as Exhibit "A"). Such employment shall be of such nature as to provide the employee with the same benefits that would be afforded current CDHS staff based upon CDHS Classification. CORC agrees to reimburse the Delaware CDHS for costs associated with the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA) not to exceed <u>\$18,665.00</u> for the period of May 15, 2000 June 30, 2000. In no event shall CORC be responsible for reimbursement of wage and benefit costs of individual that exceeds the costs for which CORC would have been responsible in the absence of this agreement.

- 5. INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS: The CDHS shall provide CORC with copies of cost allocation documentation along with a bill for services. No payments will be made by CORC in the absence of these required items.
- 6. SERVICE DELIVERY RECORDS: The CDHS will maintain records of JTPA services provided to enrolled participants in the same manner as those records are currently being maintained within the Delaware CORC office. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times for inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and CORC personnel.
- 7. DUPLICATE BILLING/OVERPAYMENT: CDHS warrants that claims made to CORC for payment under this agreement shall be for actual services rendered to eligible individuals and do not duplicate claims made by the CDHS to other sources of funds for the same services. In the case of overpayments, the CDHS agrees to repay CORC the amount entitled.
- 8. FINANCIAL RECORDS: The CDHS shall maintain independent books, records, payroll, documents, accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in the performance of this Agreement. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times for inspection, review or audit by duly authorized federal, state and CORC personnel.
- AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS: CDHS shall maintain and preserve all financial, program/services delivery and eligibility determination records related to this Agreement, including any other documentation used in the administration of the program, in its possession for a period of three (3) years from the date of the submission of CORC's final expenditure report, and/or will assure the maintenance of such for a period of time in the possession of any third party performing work related to this Agreement, unless otherwise directed by CORC.
 If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records has been started

before the expiration of the three (3) year period, the CDHS shall retain the records until completion of the action and all issues which arise from it or until the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later.

10. RESPONSIBILITY OF AUDIT EXCEPTIONS: The CDHS agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to, and/or complying with any audit exception by appropriate County, State or Federal Audit related to the provisions of services under this Agreement.

The CDHS agrees to reimburse the CORC the amount of any Audit Exception designated by appropriate County, State, Federal and Independent Audit related to actions taken by the CDHS without prior CORC approval related to services under this Agreement.

- 11. COMPLIANCE: The CDHS agrees to maintain compliance with state and federal regulations, which govern the services provided under the JTPA Program.
- 12. SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT: CORC and CDHS agree that the use or disclosure by any party of an information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related with the administration of the CORC's or CDHS responsibilities with respect to purchased services is prohibited except upon the written consent of the eligible individual or his responsible parent or guardian.
- 13. CIVIL RIGHTS: CDHS and CORC agree that as a condition of this Agreement, there shall be no discrimination against any client or any employee because of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, or any other factor as specified in Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and subsequent amendments. It is further agreed that the provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding such discrimination and the right to and method of appeal will be made available to all persons under this Agreement. Any agency found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation by the Office of Civil Rights of the Department of Labor and termination of this Agreement.
- 14. LIABILITY REQUIREMENTS: (other than audit). To the extent permitted by law, each agency agrees to hold the other agency harmless from liability, suits, losses, judgements, damages or other demands brought as a result of its actions or omissions in performance of this agreement. However, in the event that an agency is subject to liability, suits, losses, judgements, damages or other demands, which are due to the acts or omissions of the other agency, the other agency will not be held harmless, to the extent permitted by law.
- 15. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CORC: Pursuant to Federal regulations, State regulations and by designation of the Licking, Delaware, Muskingum, Morgan, and Coshocton County Boards of commissioners, CORC is responsible for administration of the Job Training Partnership Act in the Central Ohio Rural Consortium Area, in the State of Ohio; furthermore, CORC shall retain

final authority for administrative and policy decisions related to services delivered through this Agreement related to the JTPA Program.

- 16. MONITORING AND EVALUATION: CDHS and CORC will monitor the manner in which the terms of the Agreement are being carried out, services delivered and evaluate the extent to which the program/services objectives are being achieved.
- 17. TERMINATION: This Agreement shall terminate automatically if the provider fails to meet all licensing requirements imposed by law. This Agreement may also be terminated at any time upon ten (10) days' written notice by either party. In the event that federal funding is no longer available for this program, therefore, requiring changes or termination for this reason will be effective on the date that the reimbursement is no longer available.
- 18. AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement may be amended at any time by a written amendment signed by all parties.
- 19.PARTIAL INVALIDITY: A judicial or administrative finding, order or decision that any part of
this Agreement is illegal or invalid shall not invalidate the remainder of the Agreement.Vote on MotionMrs. MartinAyeMr. WuertzAyeMr. WardAye

RESOLUTION NO. 00-410

IN THE MATTER OF REVISING SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY, DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POLICY, AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY FOR COMMERCIAL DRIVER LICENSED DRIVERS:

It was moved by	, seconded by	to approve the following:
n mas morea og	, beconded by	to approve the rono wing.

- Whereas, Delaware County has incorporated several management policies and procedures over the last five years to appropriately manage federal mandates, improve the workplace environment, and provide a safe and healthy workplace and public service, and
- Whereas, The Delaware County Commissioners and its management staff have recognized the need to improve and update these policies and procedures to meet new requirements and better serve the County's employees and the public,
- Therefore be it resolved, by the Board of Commissioners of Delaware County, State of Ohio, that the policies: Sexual Harassment Policy, Drug Free Workplace Policy, and Substance Abuse Policy for Commercial Driver Licensed Drivers be revised to assist the proper management of the employees of Delaware County.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye	Mrs. Martin	Aye
----------------	------------	-----	----------	-----	-------------	-----

RESOLUTION NO. 00-411

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE PERSONNEL ACTIONS:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following:

Tracey Merrin has accepted the position of Employment Services Counselor for Human Services: effective date of hire is May 15, 2000.

Tamara deJonge has accepted the position as Employment Services Counselor for Human Services; effective date of hire is May 15, 2000.

Sharon Lloyd has accepted the position as Employment Services Counselor for Human Services; effective date of hire is May 15, 2000.

Candace Hendrickson has accepted the position as Social Service Worker 2 for Human Services; effective date of hire is May 15, 2000.

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward	Aye	Mrs. Martin	Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Aye
-------------------------	-----	-------------	-----	------------	-----

RESOLUTION NO. 00-412

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL TO SUBMIT ADDENDUM FOR FISCAL YEAR 2001 APPLICATION FOR THE COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS ACT SUBSIDY GRANT:

It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the submittal of the Addendum for the Fiscal Year 2001 Application for the Community Correction Act Subsidy Grant.

Vote on Motion	Mrs. Martin	Aye	Mr. Wuer	tz Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye		
RESOLUTION NO. 00-	413							
IN THE MATTER OF A AT 10:30 AM:	ADJOURNING IN	NTO EXI	ECUTIVE	SESSION FOR	R PERSONNEL M	IATTERS		
It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mr. Ward to go into Executive Session.								
Vote on Motion:	Mr. Ward	Aye	Mrs. Mar	tin Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Aye		
RESOLUTION NO. 00-414								
IN THE MATTER OF ADJOURNING OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 10:45 AM:								
It was moved by Mr. Ward, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to adjourn out of Executive Session.								
Vote on Motion:	Mrs. Martin	Aye	Mr. Wuer	tz Aye	Mr. Ward	Aye		
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.								
			-	Deborah Marti	n			
				Deboran Martin				
			-	James D. Ward				

Donald Wuertz

Letha George, Clerk to the Commissioners